UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019
Commission file number 001-35239

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

20-8874704
(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

8760 Clay Road Houston, TX 77080
(Address of principal executive offices including ZIP code)
(713) 864-1358
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class

Trading Symbol(s)

Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share

FRAN

The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ¨ No x
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes ¨ No x
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes x No ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an
emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company” and “emerging growth company”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer ¨
Accelerated filer x
Non-accelerated filer ¨
Smaller reporting company x
Emerging growth company ¨
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).Yes ¨ No x
The aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of August 3, 2018, the last business day of the
registrant’s most recently completed second quarter, was approximately $199.4 million.
As of April 15, 2019, there were 35,491,049 shares (excluding 11,079,448 of treasury stock) of Common Stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after the end of the 2018 fiscal year, are incorporated by reference into Part III of this report.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART I.

4

Item 1.

Business

Item 1A.

Risk Factors

12

Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

27

Item 2.

Properties

27

Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

27

Item 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures

27

PART II.

4

28

Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

28

Item 6.

Selected Financial Data

28

Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

30

Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

41

Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

42

Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

61

Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

61

Item 9B.

Other Information

63

PART III.

63

Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

63

Item 11.

Executive Compensation

63

Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

63

Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

63

Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

63

PART IV.

63

Item 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

63

Item 16.

Form 10-K Summary

65

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements that constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, as amended. These statements concern our business, operations and financial performance and condition as well as our plans, objectives
and expectations for our business operations and financial performance and condition, which are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than
statements of historical fact included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements. These statements may include words such as “aim”,
“anticipate”, “assume”, “believe”, “can have”, “could”, “due”, “estimate”, “expect”, “goal”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”, “potential”,
“positioned”, “predict”, “should”, “target”, “will”, “would” and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with any discussion of the timing or
nature of future operating or financial performance or other events or trends. For example, all statements we make relating to our estimated and projected
earnings, sales, costs, expenditures, cash flows, growth rates, market share and financial results, our plans and objectives for future operations, growth or
initiatives, strategies or the expected outcome or impact of pending or threatened litigation are forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about our business and the industry in which we
operate and our management’s beliefs and assumptions. These statements are not guarantees of future performance or development and involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are in many cases beyond our control. All of our forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties that may cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the
following: the risk that our exploration of strategic or financial alternatives may not result in any transaction or alternative that enhances value, the risk that
we may not be able to successfully integrate our Interim Chief Executive Officer and attract and integrate a new Chief Executive Officer; the risk that we
cannot anticipate, identify and respond quickly to changing fashion trends and customer preferences or changes in consumer environment, including
changing expectations of service and experience in boutiques and online, and evolve our business model; our ability to attract a sufficient number of
customers to our boutiques or sell sufficient quantities of our merchandise through our ecommerce website; our ability to successfully open, close, refresh,
and operate new boutiques each year; our ability to efficiently source and distribute additional merchandise quantities necessary to support our growth; risks
related to our ability to comply with the continued listing standards of the Nasdaq Global Select Market and the potential delisting of our common stock;
and the impact of potential tariff increases or new tariffs. For additional information regarding these risks and other risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those contained in our forward-looking statements, please refer to “Risk Factors,” contained in Part I of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and any risk factors contained in subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).
We derive many of our forward-looking statements from our own operating budgets and forecasts, which are based upon many detailed assumptions. While
we believe that our assumptions are reasonable, we caution that it is very difficult to predict the impact of known factors, and it is impossible for us to
anticipate all factors that could affect our actual results. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations, or
cautionary statements, are disclosed under “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf, are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as well as other cautionary statements that
are made from time to time in our other SEC filings and public communications. You should evaluate all forward-looking statements made in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and otherwise in the context of these risks and uncertainties.
Potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on any forward-looking statements we make. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements after the date of this report to reflect actual results
or future events or circumstances whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation was incorporated in Delaware in 2007. We are a holding company and all of our business operations are conducted
through our subsidiaries. Our principal executive office is located at 8760 Clay Road, Houston, Texas 77080, our telephone number is (713) 864-1358 and
our fax number is (713) 426-2751. We maintain a website at www.francescas.com. We may post information that is important to our investors on our website.
Information included or referred to on, or otherwise accessible through, our website is not intended to form part or be incorporated by reference into this
report. Except where the context otherwise requires or where otherwise indicated, the terms “francesca’s®,” “we,” “us,” “our,” “the Company,” and “our
business” refer to Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries as a combined entity.
We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The reporting
periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain 52 weeks of operations in fiscal
year 2018, which ended on February 2, 2019, 53 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018, and 52 weeks of operations in
fiscal year 2016, which ended on January 28, 2017.
Our Company
francesca’s® is a specialty retailer which operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and personalized shopping experience.
The merchandise assortment we offer is a diverse and balanced mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts. We aim to offer a differentiated shopping
experience and quality, on-trend merchandise at a compelling value, across a wide variety of geographic markets and shopping venues. As of February 2,
2019, francesca’s® operated 727 boutiques in 47 states and the District of Columbia and also served its customers through www.francescas.com, our
ecommerce website.
Recent Developments
We have developed a turnaround plan to stabilize and then grow our business. This plan includes strategies aimed at enhancing our financial performance,
which has declined primarily as a result of our continued comparable sales declines. See “Our Growth Strategy” below for additional information. In fiscal
year 2018, comparable sales declined 14% and in fiscal year 2017 comparable sales declined 11%. In each case, we believe the declines were primarily the
result of our inability to successfully implement merchandise planning, buying and promotional policies to leverage our strength of delivering on-trend
merchandise at a compelling value, causing declines in both conversion rates and boutique traffic. Additionally, the growth in our expense structure has
outpaced our revenues. As a result, our ability to generate cash from operations was adversely impacted in fiscal year 2018 and we ended the year with $20.1
million in cash and cash equivalents and approximately $10.0 million in borrowings under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below).
Subsequent to fiscal year 2018, we borrowed an additional $5.0 million under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility while waiting for the receipt of an
income tax refund from the IRS. As of May 2, 2019, our estimated cash and cash equivalents were approximately $13.0 million which included the receipt of
$8.5 million income tax refund from the IRS we received on April 22, 2019. Additionally, the estimated cash balance as of May 2, 2019 reflects a $5.0
million payment on our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility, bringing the outstanding balance back down to $10.0 million and our estimated additional
availability to $14.6 million as of that date. We also incurred an operating loss of $33.5 million in fiscal 2018 as compared to operating income of $30.0
million in fiscal 2017. Our operating loss for fiscal year 2018 includes a non-cash asset impairment charge, a full valuation allowance on our net deferred tax
assets, professional fees associated with the Company’s turnaround plan and evaluation of strategic and financial alternatives discussed below and reversal of
stock-based compensation in connection with our Chief Executive Officer’s (“CEO”) resignation. See below under Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, “Results of Operations,” for additional information.
In addition, as previously disclosed, in January 2019, our Board of Directors initiated a review of our strategic and financial alternatives to maximize value.
We retained Rothschild & Co and other advisors to assist in the review of these alternatives. There can be no assurance that the exploration of strategic and
financial alternatives will result in any transaction or other result that enhances value. Also as previously disclosed, we have not set a timetable for the
completion of the review process, and we do not intend to comment on the process unless a specific transaction or other alternative is approved by our Board
of Directors, the process is concluded, or it is otherwise determined that further disclosure is appropriate or required by law.
In addition, in February 2019, Mr. Steve Lawrence resigned from his position as our President and CEO and Mr. Michael Prendergast of Alvarez & Marsal was
appointed as our Interim CEO. Also, in February 2019, our Senior Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer departed the Company. We are in the
beginning stages of a formal search for a permanent CEO and either a general merchandising manager or a Chief Merchandising Officer, but are confident that
we currently have an experienced interim leadership team in place to execute on our turnaround plan.
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Our Philosophy
Our operating philosophy is grounded in the following and we believe differentiates us from our competitors:
·

On-trend Merchandise Delivered at a Compelling Value. Our boutiques aim to carry a broad and shallow selection of quality on-trend apparel,
jewelry, accessories and gifts at attractive prices that ‘surprise and delight’ our customers. Our buyers closely monitor the marketplace to identify
and source proven fashion trends we believe will appeal to our core customers. We have a unique assortment as we primarily offer items under our
proprietary labels. We also carry a small selection of third-party, nationally recognized brands that we use opportunistically in certain categories. We
offer a broad selection of merchandise, but intentionally purchase relatively smaller quantities of individual items for each boutique. We frequently
replenish our boutiques with new merchandise, keeping the shopping experience fresh and exciting for our customers. The short lead times of our
vendors maximizes our speed to market, as it generally takes four to twelve weeks from the time an order is placed to the time merchandise is
available on the boutique floor. These short lead times enable us to make more informed buying decisions by allowing us to react quickly to fashion
trends. This approach, combined with our balanced merchandise mix of approximately 50% apparel and 50% jewelry, accessories and gifts, is
designed to encourage frequent visits by our customers and mitigate the seasonal fluctuations in sales and merchandise margin.

·

Differentiated Shopping Experience. Each of our retail locations is designed and merchandised to feel like an upscale yet affordable boutique.
Merchandise presentations, including display windows, tables and walls, are refreshed frequently to keep our boutiques new and exciting. Each
boutique feels individualized and our boutique associates strive to provide a personalized and intimate guest experience by creating a high-touch
service environment which increases guest engagement and enhances the shopping experience. We believe these attributes, along with our strategy
of carrying a broad selection but relatively limited quantities of individual styles, create an atmosphere that appeals to our customers and
differentiates us in the marketplace.

·

Flexible Boutique Format and Rigorous Real Estate Selection Process. Our boutique format typically works across a wide variety of shopping
venues, market sizes, climates and demographics. Our boutiques are leased from third parties with initial lease terms of five to ten years and have an
average size of 1,452 square feet, which is meaningfully smaller than most specialty retailers. Our flexible real estate format, coupled with the
performance of our boutiques, has historically enhanced our ability to secure prominent, highly visible locations in regional malls, lifestyle centers,
street locations, strip centers and outlet centers. The selection of the location of our boutiques benefits from our rigorous real estate selection
process, with all boutique locations measured against specific financial and geographic criteria, including the calibration of occupancy costs against
projected sales for new boutiques.

·

Solid and Scalable Infrastructure. We have invested in systems, controls and human resources to support our operations. In recent years, we have
made significant improvements in our ecommerce and IT systems as well as the infrastructure of our buying, planning and allocation, real estate,
boutique operations, and finance departments. For instance, we believe that we have developed an integrated sourcing, distribution and
merchandising process that is scalable. This includes buyers who work closely with an established and diverse group of vendors to identify on-trend,
quality merchandise for our boutiques, as well as delivery, distribution and merchandising processes that enable us to execute a broad and shallow
merchandising approach.
Our Growth Strategy

We believe we can grow our revenues and earnings by executing on our turnaround plan that includes the following strategies:
·

Improve Merchandise to be More On-Trend and Better Aligned with Customer Demand. We plan to increase comparable sales by having customer
demand drive our merchandise assortment. In recent years, we have not successfully executed demand based, fast fashion merchandising processes.
Going forward, we plan to return to merchandising policies that allow us to better react to customer demands. Additionally, we will be guided by a
deliberate category hierarchy focused on three types of merchandise: fashion, seasonal and core to ensure that our merchandise offerings are
balanced and relevant to our customers. We believe this merchandising strategy will improve our conversion rates as we better meet our customers’
expectations which will then lead to increased traffic.

·

Renewed Emphasis on Demand Based, Fast Fashion Principles in Merchandise Planning and Buying. We believe merchandise planning and
buying processes that better emphasize demand based, fast fashion principles will help drive comparable sales. We believe successfully
implementing these principles will enable us to invest further in merchandise that is resonating with our customers and adjust accordingly when
merchandise is not resonating with our customers. We expect this will result in improved sales and a steady flow of on-trend merchandise into our
boutiques and ecommerce site. Our turnaround plan includes the following strategies that will help us better implement to those principles:
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o
o
o

We are updating and adding robust analytics to our planning and buying processes in order to more quickly react to fashion trends and the
resonance of our merchandise with our customers.
We are increasing the flexibility of our planning such that a greater portion of our merchandise will be open to buy in season, enabling our
style selection and inventory investments to better respond to customer demand.
We are activating a wide scale testing strategy to help evaluate promotional strategies with the goal to expand impactful wins to all
boutiques.

·

Right Size Our Expense Structure. At the end of fiscal 2018 and in early fiscal 2019, we reduced selling, general and administrative costs by
implementing targeted reductions across the entire organization, including workforce reductions in both our corporate office and field management,
which we expect will provide us with approximately $15.0 million in annualized savings before costs to achieve. We plan to continue to look for
further efficiencies in selling, general and administrative costs in the remainder of fiscal 2019. For example, in February 2019, we instituted a robust
and detailed expense controls and review process. We believe these actions will have a direct impact on our profitability in both the short and long
term.

·

Increase Boutique Team Productivity. We believe through focused monitoring of our boutique labor and sales metrics we can better utilize our sales
associates’ time without sacrificing the customer experience. For example, certain tasks that were previously performed by our associates after
boutique hours will now be completed when our boutiques are open but during the windows that our data shows that the boutique traffic is lighter.
Additionally, our use of an enhanced scheduling tool, that will be continuously reviewed and refined, should better align boutique payroll expense
to sales levels.

·

Optimize Existing Real Estate Fleet. While we believe we have an opportunity to grow our boutique base in the United States based on our flexible
boutique format and the financial characteristics of our boutiques, we are currently focused on optimizing our existing real estate fleet. In particular,
we are focusing on optimizing the lease expense structure for our existing boutiques, with an emphasis towards calibrating occupancy costs with
sales levels and negotiating with landlords for early lease terminations or rent concessions for underperforming boutiques and early lease extensions
for our best performing boutiques. Additionally, we continue to regularly review our existing boutiques for opportunistic closures to increase the
overall health of our fleet without incurring material write-offs associated with such closures. In fiscal 2019, we expect to open approximately four
new boutiques and close at least 20 underperforming boutiques.
Our History

In 1999, our Company was founded and we opened our first boutique in Houston, Texas. Initially, we focused on selling fashion jewelry, accessories and
selected home décor. As our boutique base grew across the United States we expanded our merchandise offering to include apparel, which has become our
largest category. In July 2011, we became a publicly-traded company.
Our Market
Our distinct boutique environment and carefully selected merchandise focused on quality, on-trend offerings at a compelling value attracts a wide
demographic. Our unique merchandise combination of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts allows us to participate in a number of large market segments.
While our broad assortment appeals to women of varying ages and diverse backgrounds, from the value-conscious to the more affluent, our core guest is a
fashion-conscious woman between the ages of 18 and 35. She tends to be college educated and has moderate to high disposable income. She enjoys
shopping for the latest fashion and is attracted to our upscale boutique shopping environment, compelling value proposition and personalized customer
service. We believe she spends a higher proportion of her income on fashion than the general population.
Our Merchandise Offering and Merchandising Strategy
We offer a broad and shallow selection of fashion apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts targeted to our core customer, who seeks on-trend, quality
merchandise at attractive prices. We use the term broad and shallow to refer to a diverse merchandise assortment with smaller quantities of each item than
most specialty retailers. In addition to our broad assortment, we deliver new merchandise to our boutiques every week offering our customer constant
newness. We have a balanced assortment of merchandise categories with 50% of our fiscal year 2018 sales generated by non-apparel items.
Our wide range of apparel, jewelry and accessories fills the various casual and dressy fashion needs of our customers and our selection of gifts range from fun
to elegant. The majority of our merchandise is sold under our proprietary labels and we also sell a select assortment of third-party, nationally recognized
brands. Our ecommerce website features the same merchandise offered in our boutiques coupled with on-line exclusives. Additionally, our ecommerce
inventory is now available to order in-boutique in the same transaction as in-boutique purchases or in a separate transaction. The table below shows the
approximate breakdown of our fiscal year 2018 net sales by merchandise category:
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Apparel
47% of Net Sales
Dresses, Fashion Tops, Sweaters, Cardigans
and Wraps, Bottoms, Outerwear and Jackets,
Tees and Tanks, Intimates

Jewelry
25% of Net Sales
Necklaces, Earrings, Bracelets,
Rings

Accessories
16% of Net Sales
Handbags, Clutches, Wallets,
Shoes, Belts, Hats, Scarves,
Sunglasses, Watches, Beauty,
Hair Accessories

Gifts
12% of Net Sales
Fragrance, Candles, Bath and
Body, Home Accessories, Books,
Wall Art, Nail Polish,
Miscellaneous Items

As discussed above, we believe we can improve our conversion and traffic rates and our flow of on-trend merchandise by implementing our strategies of
customer demand driving our merchandise assortment and our renewed emphasis on demand based, fast fashion principles in merchandise planning and
buying.
Our buying team is responsible for selecting and sourcing our merchandise. Each merchandise category has a set of dedicated buyers. Our planning and
allocation team assists in managing inventory levels and allocating items to boutiques. Both the buying and planning and allocation teams are currently
reporting to an interim General Merchandise Manager with a tenured and broad range of retail experience. The teams hold weekly meetings to review
merchandise performance and identify new fashion trends. Our buyers also make regular trips to important industry markets and trade shows. We have access
to the expertise of hundreds of designers employed by our large vendor base who provide us with a large selection of new styles for review. Our buyers
collaborate with vendors to place special orders and to modify presented styles based on current fashion trends and their in-depth knowledge of our
customers’ preferences, which means most of our merchandise is typically unique to francesca’s. Before placing an order, every item is evaluated for style,
quality, fit, value and profitability to ensure it meets standards consistent with the francesca’s ® brand. Every item is also evaluated to confirm that it fits
within our category hierarchy comprised of fashion, seasonal or core categories. In order to clear slow moving inventory, in addition to normal promotional
and markdown activities, we regularly mark certain merchandise out-of-stock and dispose of such inventory at a pace suitable for our merchandising strategy.
Our Sourcing Strategy
Our renewed emphasis on a demand based, fast fashion model in merchandise planning and buying, combined with the short production lead times of our
vendors, maximizes our speed to market. We primarily use vendors based in the United States that source from both domestic and overseas markets and it
generally takes four to twelve weeks from the time an order is placed to the time merchandise is available on the boutique floor. These short lead times enable
us to make more informed buying decisions in terms of customers’ merchandise expectations, and to quickly react to changing fashion trends. This also
supports our merchandise strategy of offering a broad and shallow assortment that is consistently refreshed.
We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities. We have relationships with a diverse base of more than 500 vendors and transact business on a
purchase-order-by-purchase order basis. In fiscal year 2018, we sourced approximately 93% of our merchandise from 200 vendors while our top 10 vendors
sourced approximately 28% of our merchandise, with no single vendor accounting for more than 5% of our purchases. We believe that the loss of any single
current vendor would not result in a material disruption to our business.
We do not enter into exclusive contracts with our vendors and we continue to optimize our vendor network. This provides us with access to an even
more extensive variety of merchandise from a greater number of vendors at competitive prices. We believe our vendors view us as an important customer
given our market position. Our vendors utilize a network of domestic and overseas factories, providing them access to significant capacity.
Each of our vendors is required to adhere to our vendor standards, which are designed to ensure that our vendors conduct their business in a legal, ethical and
responsible manner. This also includes the requirement that all of our vendors comply with the applicable laws and regulations of the United States, those of
the respective country of manufacture or exportation and all state and local laws and regulations. To date, we have not experienced any significant impact
from the trading polices of the United States or its trading partners.
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Our Sales Channels
We conduct business through our boutiques and our ecommerce website, www.francescas.com. We do not incorporate the information contained on, or
accessible through, our investor relations website into this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and it should not be considered a part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
Boutiques
As of February 2, 2019, we operated 727 boutiques under the name francesca’s® in 47 states throughout the United States and the District of Columbia. Our
long-term strategy depends on our ability to successfully operate existing and new boutiques in a timely and cost-effective manner. Under the turnaround
plan, our current priority is to implement the strategies discussed above under “Our Growth Strategy” to enhance comparable sales and profitability and, as
such, we are only planning to open approximately four new boutiques in fiscal year 2019 and plan to close at least 20 underperforming boutiques as we
continue to optimize our existing boutique fleet. We plan to resume boutique openings in the future as appropriate once the desired results of our turnaround
plan are achieved. The following list shows the number of boutiques operated by state as of February 2, 2019.
State
Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
District of Columbia*
Florida
Georgia
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
* Not considered a state.

Number of Boutiques

State
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming

13
12
9
62
14
10
4
2
53
20
2
34
16
7
7
10
12
2
15
21
20
15
7
15

Number of Boutiques
2
5
9
6
28
3
28
21
4
25
8
7
29
4
11
2
18
77
3
23
15
3
13
1

Boutique Design and Environment
The differentiated shopping experience offered through our boutiques is central to the francesca’s® brand. Our boutiques are designed and merchandised to
deliver a warm and inviting atmosphere that creates a boutique shopping experience. We also aim to provide a personalized in-boutique guest experience by
creating a high-touch service environment with a focus on engaging, connecting and inspiring our customers. Although we strive to maintain a relatively
consistent look and feel in all of our boutiques, the intricacies of each boutique’s physical properties, geographic market and shopping venue make each feel
different and in tune with its local clientele.
Our boutiques typically range in size from 1,000 to 2,000 square feet, with an average size of 1,452 square feet as of February 2, 2019. Our locations typically
have a boutique front that is at least 25 feet wide, which we adorn with visually appealing architectural lighting, signage and display window presentations.
Inside, we use a variety of color palettes and soft lighting. Each boutique’s merchandise presentation, including display windows, tables and walls, is
refreshed frequently to keep our shopping experience new and exciting. We believe by constantly changing our visual merchandising and presentation, we
give our customers a reason to shop our boutiques frequently, building customer loyalty. Our boutique managers also share best-practices with each other.
We believe these grass-root interactions improve the sense of community among our boutique managers and enhance the shopping experience for our
customers.
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Staffing in our boutiques consists of a boutique manager, an assistant manager and part-time associates. Our compensation structure includes a bonus
component payable upon the achievement of certain financial goals. We endeavor to hire boutique personnel that are friendly and customer-service driven
individuals. In addition to training programs for visual merchandising, customer service and operations, boutique managers benefit from ongoing field-level
support and training updates as well as guides and manuals. As discussed above under “Our Growth Strategy,” a core component of our growth strategy is to
increase the productivity of our in-boutique teams.
Boutique Openings, Closures and Remodels
During fiscal year 2017, we opened 60 boutiques with an average size of approximately 1,597 square feet. These boutiques generated average sales of
approximately $578,000 in the first year and paid back our net investment, on average, in approximately three and a half years. Our average pre-tax net
investment consisted of $236,000 in average boutique build-out costs (net of $57,000 average tenant allowance) and $58,000 in average inventory. The
payback period for boutiques opened in fiscal year 2017 was significantly longer compared to the payback period for boutiques opened in prior years
primarily due to a decrease in overall boutique profitability as well as increasing boutique build-out costs, partly as a result of opening more boutiques in
outlet centers, which are generally larger in size compared to boutiques in other venues.
The table below indicates certain historical information regarding our boutiques as of the end of each of the periods indicated below:
Fiscal
Year
2018
350
377
727
32
26
81
1,055,000
1,452
$
404

Mall
Non-mall (1)
Total boutiques
Boutiques opened
Boutiques closed
Boutique remodels
Total approximate gross square feet at the end of the period
Average square feet per boutique at the end of the period (2)
Net sales per average square foot for the period (3)

Fiscal
Year
2017
351
370
721
60
10
17
1,024,000
1,420
$
482

Fiscal
Year
2016
334
337
671
64
9
32
933,000
1,391
$
545

Fiscal
Year
2015
313
303
616
83
6
25
843,000
1,368
$
543

Fiscal
Year
2014
278
261
539
88
50
728,000
1,350
$
545

(1) Non-mall includes boutiques in lifestyle centers, street locations, strip centers and outlet centers.
(2) Average square feet per boutique is calculated by dividing total gross square feet at the end of the period by the number of boutiques open at the end of
the period.
(3) Net sales per average square foot is calculated by dividing net sales for the period by the average total square feet during the period. For purposes of
providing net sales per square- foot measure, we use average square feet during the period as opposed to total gross square feet at the end of the period.
Average square feet is calculated as (a) the sum of total gross square feet at the beginning of the period and total gross square feet at the end of each fiscal
quarter within the period, divided by (b) the number of fiscal quarters within the period plus one (which, for a fiscal year, is five). There may be variations
in the way in which some of our competitors and other retailers calculate sales per square foot or similarly titled measures. As a result, average square feet
and net sales per average square foot for the period may not be comparable to similar data made available by other retailers.
Our flexible boutique format has enabled us to successfully open boutiques across a variety of shopping venues, market sizes, climates and demographics.
Our real estate committee has consistently utilized a disciplined approach to site selection, which analyzes the prospective shopping venue for factors such as
overall shopping venue productivity, competitive environment and specific sales of other retailers deemed most relevant as well as the configuration of
available space for potential new boutique locations. When selecting a location for a new boutique, we seek prominent locations in high-traffic areas of the
shopping venue and in close proximity to other retailers targeting similar customers. We also evaluate each new boutique location based on projected sales
and determine whether the capital investment and estimated boutique four-wall contribution satisfies our targeted return threshold, occupancy costs, and
boutique contribution. We believe these attributes have provided us, and will continue to provide us, with a wide scope of real estate opportunities and
enhances our ability to profitably expand our boutique base. Our current priority is to implement the strategies of our turnaround plan discussed above under
“Our Growth Strategy” to enhance comparable sales and profitability and, as such, we are only planning to open approximately four new boutiques in fiscal
year 2019 and plan to close at least 20 underperforming boutiques as we continue to optimize our existing boutique fleet. We plan to resume boutique
openings in the future as appropriate when the desired results are achieved under our turnaround plan.
We continuously review the overall economic performance of our boutiques. As part of our economic review process, we evaluate a variety of factors such as
expected future revenue and contribution margin, applicable market conditions, our co-tenancy requirements, unamortized portion of leasehold
improvements, our ability to terminate the underlying lease obligation and related cost of any such early termination. As a result of such review, we closed 26
underperforming boutiques during fiscal year 2018, with the bulk of such closures occurring in January 2019, and we plan to close at least 20
underperforming boutiques in fiscal year 2019. For fiscal year 2019, we are focused on optimizing our existing real estate fleet by focusing on optimizing the
lease expense structure for our existing boutiques, with an emphasis towards calibrating occupancy costs and sales levels, negotiating with landlords for early
lease terminations or rent concessions for underperforming boutiques and early extensions for our best performing boutiques, as appropriate.
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In fiscal year 2018, we started a boutique remodel program where we refreshed 81 high-volume existing boutiques. We view this refresh program as an
important investment to continually enhance the customer shopping experience. We believe the 2018 refreshes will help improve our comparable sales
during fiscal year 2019. While we have decided to put a pause on this program in fiscal year 2019 due to the recent challenges in our business, we currently
intend to reinitiate this program in fiscal year 2020.
Ecommerce
Our ecommerce operations consists of our www.francescas.com website. Through our website, our customers are able to purchase individual items, shop the
latest jewelry, gift or fashion merchandise and special promotions, create a wish list, sign up for our customer email list, connect and follow us on social
media sites such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Pinterest, as well as obtain current information on our boutique locations. This channel enables us to
further build our brand, address the growing preference for online shopping and reach customers in all areas where we currently do not have a boutique. We
recognize the growing preference for online shopping and we plan to make investments in our website and supporting functions that will further enhance our
customers’ shopping experience as well as establish the framework for our long-term ecommerce strategies. During fiscal 2018, we invested in a warehouse
management system to support our ecommerce operations. During fiscal year 2019, we plan to focus on “Our Growth Strategy” as described above and we do
not plan to make any significant new investments to our ecommerce operations. We believe there is significant potential to expand this channel over time
with our current infrastructure.
Omni Channel Customer Experience
We have made significant investments in our technology systems and enabled certain omni channel capabilities, including “buy-online and ship-toboutique” and “buy-in-boutique and ship-to-home,” which offer a consistent and seamless shopping experience both in-boutique or online. We believe that
the line between our boutiques and ecommerce channels are disappearing as customers increasingly interact with us both in-boutique and online. We are
focused on leveraging the best of both channels to create an exceptional and seamless omni channel shopping experience for our customers.
Marketing and Advertising
We have historically focused on organic, viral and in-boutique marketing to increase customer loyalty and build our brand image. By locating our boutiques
in prominent, high-traffic locations and our limited use of traditional radio and print advertising, we encourage people to ‘discover’ francesca’s ®. We believe
that many of our customers develop a personal connection with our boutiques and become our ambassadors in the local community by spreading the word
about francesca’s®. Our boutique managers are passionate about francesca’s ® and contribute to our marketing effort by participating in shopping center or
community sponsored marketing events. We also use email communications, our website and, increasingly, social networking sites, such as Facebook,
Twitter, Instagram and Pinterest and fashion related blogs to achieve our marketing goals. We plan to continue to focus our investments in the appropriate
marketing programs to build customer loyalty. In 2018, we launched a nationwide customer loyalty program, franRewards™, where members may receive
free gifts, discounts as well as early access to certain promotions. Our loyalty program is aimed at driving traffic into our boutiques, better understand our
customers’ purchasing pattern as well as support various strategic initiatives.
Distribution
We distribute most of our merchandise from our distribution center (located within our corporate headquarters) in Houston, Texas. Our current facility
occupies approximately 218,000 square feet, consisting of approximately 165,000 square feet of warehouse and distribution space, which services our
boutiques and ecommerce, and approximately 53,000 square feet of office space for our corporate headquarters. Our merchandise is generally received,
inspected, managed, stored and distributed through our distribution warehouse. The majority of our merchandise is pre-ticketed and pre-sorted by our
vendors which allows us to efficiently ship from our distribution center directly to our boutiques, thereby reducing labor costs. Due to the relatively small
size of our boutiques, we ship smaller packages of fresh merchandise weekly. Hence, we are able to utilize third party shipping vendors to effectively
distribute merchandise on a continuous basis, ensuring successful execution of our broad and shallow merchandising strategy. We believe that our current
facilities will be sufficient to support our growth plans for several years.
Management Information Systems
Our management information technology systems provide support and timely information to our management team. We believe our current systems provide
us with operational efficiencies, scalability, management control and timely reporting that allows us to identify and respond to operating trends in our
business. We use a combination of customized and industry-standard software systems to support boutique point-of-sale, merchandise planning and buying,
ecommerce, inventory management, financial reporting and administrative functions.
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We recently deployed new technologies to enhance our omni-channel and customer engagement capabilities as part of our long-term strategic plan. In fiscal
year 2017, we completed our legacy point-of-sale system replacement and the implementation of a new customer relationship management system. In
October 2018, we completed the implementation of a new warehouse management system for ecommerce. These new systems will enhance our visibility into
our customers’ preferences, merchandise products and supply chain which we expect will result in improved customer service, improved operational
efficiency, enhanced management analytics and increased inventory synergies between our ecommerce and our boutique channels.
We will remain diligent in our efforts to maintain the functionality and performance of our existing enterprise applications and infrastructure to support the
Company’s turnaround and growth plans.
Competition
The women’s apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts market is large, fragmented and highly competitive. Our largest competitors include national and
regional department stores, value retailers, specialty retailers, mass merchants and internet-based retailers. Due to the breadth of our merchandise, it is difficult
to identify companies that compete with us in every product category. We generally compete with individual, often owner-operated specialty shops in each
of the markets that we operate as well as broadly merchandised department stores and certain specialty stores. We also face intense competition from the
ecommerce platforms of our brick and mortar competitors, as well as internet-based retailers due to the continuing shift in customer demand away from brick
and mortar to ecommerce. We may also face new competitors and increased competition from existing competitors as we expand into new markets and
increase our presence in existing markets.
The principal basis upon which we compete is by offering a differentiated shopping experience through quality, on-trend merchandise at attractive prices in a
warm and inviting boutique environment with personalized customer service. Our manageable boutique size and flexible but disciplined real estate strategy
provide us with a competitive advantage that is not easily replicated by our major competitors. Our success also depends in substantial part on our ability to
respond quickly to fashion trends so that we can meet the changing demands of our customers.
Intellectual Property
We have registered our trademark francesca’s® with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We own domain names, including www.francescas.com,
and we own unregistered copyright rights in our website content. We believe our trademarks have value, and we diligently protect them against infringement.
For instance, we have filed applications to register our trademark internationally. We will also continue to file new applications as appropriate to protect our
intellectual property rights.
Regulation and Legislation
We are subject to labor and employment laws, laws governing advertising and promotions, privacy laws, product and other safety regulations, consumer
protection regulations, environmental requirements and other laws that regulate retailers and govern the promotion and sale of merchandise and the operation
of boutiques and warehouse facilities. We monitor changes in these laws and believe that we are in compliance with applicable laws in all material respects.
Insurance
We use insurance for a number of risk management activities, including workers’ compensation, general liability, automobile liability, cyber security and
employee-related health care benefits, a portion of which is paid by the employees. We evaluate our insurance requirements on an ongoing basis and believe
we maintain adequate levels of coverage.
Our Employees
As of February 2, 2019, we had 5,955 total employees. None of our employees are represented by a labor union and we have had no labor-related work
stoppages as of February 2, 2019. Our relationship with our employees is one of the keys to our success and we believe that relationship is satisfactory.
Seasonality
Our wide-range of merchandise and our strategy of carrying a broad selection but limited quantities of each item reduce our overall seasonality relative to
other specialty retailers. Nevertheless, our business is seasonal in nature and demand is generally the highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end
holiday season and lowest in the first fiscal quarter. As a result of this seasonality and generally because of variation in consumer spending habits, we
experience fluctuations in net sales and working capital requirements during the year. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Seasonality” for more information.
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Privacy Policy
In the course of our business, we collect information about our customers, including customer data submitted to us in connection with purchases of our
merchandise at boutiques as well as from our ecommerce website. We respect the privacy of our customers and take steps to safeguard the confidentiality of
the information that they provide to us.
Securities and Exchange Commission Filings
We maintain a website at www.francescas.com. We provide, free of charge, access to various reports that we file with, or furnish to, the SEC through our
website, as soon as reasonably practicable after they have been filed or furnished with the SEC. These reports include, but not limited to, our Annual Reports
on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports. The SEC maintains a website that
contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding our filings at http://www.sec.gov.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operation, cash flow and prospects could be materially and adversely
affected. As a result, the trading price of our common stock could decline.
We have recently experienced a significant decline in our operating margins and our inability to maintain or improve our operating margins could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
In fiscal year 2018, we had an operating loss for the first time as a public company. We aim to increase our operating margins through enhancements to our
merchandise offerings, continued cost disciplines, improved productivity in our boutiques and the optimization of the lease expense structure for our
existing boutiques. There can be no assurance that these measures will be successful. Further, our fiscal year 2018 operating loss has resulted in less cash from
operations making it more difficult for us to successfully operate our business and execute our turnaround plan. For example, we have paused our boutique
remodel program that we initiated in fiscal year 2018 even though we view this refresh program as an important investment to continually enhance the
customer shopping experience we strive to achieve. Additionally, it has made it difficult for us to capitalize on our opportunities to improve our
infrastructure. For example, with respect to our infrastructure, if we do not have the funds to adequately refine and improve our various ordering, tracking and
allocation systems, we may not be able to react quickly enough to changing trends and customer demand or reduce inventory shrinkage. If we are not able to
successfully execute our turnaround plan, we may not be able to achieve our goals with respect to operating margins. As a result, our operating margins may
stagnate or further decline, which could adversely affect our ability to make necessary improvements to our business, which would negatively impact our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
We have recently experienced a significant decline in our comparable sales and our inability to maintain or increase our comparable sales could
adversely impact our net sales and financial condition.
Our comparable sales significantly declined in fiscal years 2017 and 2018 as compared to prior year periods. We may not be able to sustain or increase
comparable sales. If our future comparable sales further decline or fail to meet market expectations, our profitability could be harmed or become nonexistent.
The aggregate comparable sales levels of our boutiques have fluctuated in the past and can be expected to fluctuate in the future. A variety of factors affect
comparable sales, including fashion trends, competition, current national and regional economic conditions, pricing, changes in customer shopping patterns,
changes in our merchandise mix, prior period comparable sales levels, inventory shrinkage, the timing and amount of markdowns, the success of our
marketing programs, the success of our merchandising initiatives, holiday timing and weather conditions. These factors, among others, may cause our
comparable sales results to be materially lower than in recent periods, which would harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
A continuation of negative financial trends could result in our inability to continue as a going concern.
Our financial statements have been prepared on the basis that our business will continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months following the date that
our financial statements were issued on May 3, 2019. Our ability to fund our operations and to continue as a going concern depends upon the following:
meeting our projected future operating results including the successful implementation of our turnaround plan; the borrowing availability of our Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility; the absence of any material adverse effects in consumer traffic and conversion rates that may arise due to factors both within and
outside of our control. Additionally, if we do not achieve our projected operating results, we could violate one or more of our debt covenants, our liquidity
could be adversely impacted and we may need to seek additional sources of funding. There is no assurance that we will be able to maintain our borrowing
base availability of our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility, raise additional capital to fund our operations, or that debt or equity financing will be
available in sufficient amounts or on acceptable terms. If our operating results fail to improve, then our financial condition could render us unable to
continue as a going concern.
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Our liquidity has been adversely impacted by our negative operating results and there is no assurance that we will have sufficient liquidity to continue
operations.
We experienced significant declines in comparable sales, net sales and gross profit in fiscal year 2018. The decrease in comparable sales was primarily driven
by the decline in boutique traffic and conversion rates. If we were to continue to experience such declines in sales or increases in costs, we may be required to
draw on a significant portion of our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility, to the extent we have availability, and may require additional sources of
financing to fund our operations. We cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to secure sufficient funding or achieve positive results through our
growth strategy. If we are unable to generate or obtain the requisite amount of financing needed to fund our planned operations or execute our growth
strategy, our liquidity and ability to continue operations could be materially adversely affected.
The value of our deferred tax assets may not be realizable to the extent our future profits are less than we have projected, which may have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and our financial condition.
We evaluate the realizability of our deferred income tax assets and assess the need for a valuation allowance on an ongoing basis. In evaluating our deferred
income tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax assets will be realized. Based on available positive and negative
evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and tax planning strategies,
we determined that it is more-likely-than-not that we will not realize our deferred tax assets in future periods and, therefore, a full valuation allowance was
established at February 2, 2019. Accordingly, we recorded a valuation allowance of $17.1 million on our net deferred tax asset in fiscal year 2018. Our
assessment of the realizability of our deferred income tax assets requires significant judgment.
There are no assurances that we will not increase or decrease the valuation allowances in future periods against deferred tax assets and liabilities. Any
additional valuation allowance or the failure to reverse our current valuation allowance could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial conditions.
We will require capital to fund our business, which may not be available to us on satisfactory terms or at all. We plan to use cash from operations and our
Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility to fund our operations and execute our strategy. If we are unable to maintain sufficient levels of cash flow, we may
not meet our expectations or we may require additional financing which could adversely affect our financial health and impose covenants that limit our
business activities.
We currently primarily depend on cash flow from operations and our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility to fund our business. Availability under our
Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a customary borrowing base comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of our credit card accounts (as
defined in the agreement); and (b) a specified percentage of our eligible inventory (as defined in the agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary
reserves and adjustments (as defined in the agreement). If our business does not generate sufficient cash flow from operations to fund our operations and
execute on strategy, and sufficient funds are not otherwise available to us from our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility, we may need additional equity or
debt financing. If such financing is not available to us, or is not available on satisfactory terms, our ability to continue operations could be materially and
adversely affected. If we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities, your ownership would be diluted.
We cannot assure you that our exploration of strategic and financing alternatives will result in a transaction and/or financing or that any such transaction
or financing would be successful, and the process of exploring strategic and financing alternatives or its conclusion could adversely impact our business
and our stock price.
In January 2019, we announced that our board of directors had initiated a review of its strategic and financial alternatives to maximize value. This process is
ongoing and we engaged Rothschild & Co. and other advisors to assist in the process.
There can be no assurances that the strategic and financing alternatives process will result in the announcement or consummation of any strategic or
financing transaction, or that any resulting plans or transactions will yield additional value for shareholders. Any potential transaction would be dependent
on a number of factors that may be beyond our control, including, among other things, market conditions, industry trends, the interest of third parties in any
potential transaction with the Company.
The process of exploring strategic and financial alternatives could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. We could
incur substantial expenses associated with identifying and evaluating potential strategic and financing alternatives, including those related to equity
compensation, severance pay and legal, accounting and financial advisory fees. In addition, the process may be time consuming and disruptive to our
business operations, could divert the attention of management and the board of directors from our business, could negatively impact our ability to attract,
retain and motivate key employees, and could expose us to potential litigation in connection with this process or any resulting transaction. The public
announcement of a strategic or financing alternative may also yield a negative impact on operating results if prospective or existing vendors are reluctant to
commit to new or renewal orders or if existing vendors decide to shift their business to a competitor. Further, speculation regarding any developments related
to the review of strategic or financial alternatives and perceived uncertainties related to the future of the Company could cause our stock price to fluctuate
significantly.
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Our success depends on our ability to anticipate, identify and respond quickly to new and changing fashion trends, customer preferences and other factors,
and our inability to anticipate, identify and respond to these changes and trends could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.
Our core market, which is comprised of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts for women from 18 to 35-year old, is subject to rapidly shifting fashion trends,
customer tastes and demands. Accordingly, our success is dependent on our ability to anticipate, identify and respond to the latest fashion trends and
customer demands, and to translate such trends and demands into appropriate, saleable product offerings in a timely manner. In fiscal years 2017 and 2018,
we believe we did not execute on policies that best enabled us to anticipate, identify and respond to these trend and demands, which we believe was the
primary contributor to the decline in our comparable sales. Our merchandise buying and planning and allocation teams, including previously our former
Chief Merchandising Officer and currently our interim general merchandise manager, are primarily responsible for performing this analysis and making
product purchase decisions. Our failure to anticipate, identify or react swiftly and appropriately to new and changing styles, trends or desired image
preferences or to accurately anticipate and forecast demand for certain product offerings is likely to lead to lower demand for our merchandise, which could
cause, among other things, sales declines, disposing excess inventories and a greater number of markdowns resulting in a decreased merchandise margin.
Further, if we are not able to anticipate, identify and respond to changing fashion trends and customer preferences, we may lose customers and market share to
those of our competitors who are able to better anticipate, identify and respond to such trends and preferences. Because our success depends on our brand
image, our business could be materially adversely affected if new product offerings are not accepted by our customers. Our new product offerings may not be
met with the same level of acceptance as our past product offerings and we may not be able to adequately respond to fashion trends in a timely manner or the
preferences of our customers. If we do not accurately forecast or analyze fashion trends and sales levels, our business, financial condition and results of
operations will be adversely affected.
If we are not able to successfully maintain a broad and shallow merchandise assortment, we may be unable to attract a sufficient number of customers to
our boutiques or sell sufficient quantities of our merchandise through our ecommerce website, which could result in excess inventories and markdowns.
We use the term broad and shallow to refer to a diverse merchandise assortment with relatively small inventory of each product. We believe that our strategy
to offer our customers a broad and shallow merchandise assortment is important to the success of our business. Among other things, we believe that this
strategy creates a constant sense of newness and scarcity value, which drives repeat boutique visits and increased sales. We believe that this strategy helps us
reduce markdowns. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to adequately stock our boutiques with a sufficiently broad and shallow
assortment of merchandise. As we have increased order volumes in connection with opening new boutiques and the expansion of our ecommerce website and
begun to emphasize the congruence of our merchandise offerings throughout our boutiques, it has become increasingly difficult for us to accurately forecast
the optimal amount of merchandise to order from our vendors. For example, in fiscal year 2018, there were certain products that resonated with customers, but
we had not ordered enough of those products to capitalize on their popularity. If we are unable to successfully offer a broad and shallow merchandise
assortment, customers may choose to visit our boutiques or our ecommerce website less frequently, our brand could be impaired, our market share may
decline and our results of operations will deteriorate. Further, any failure to maintain a broad and shallow merchandise assortment could lead to excess
inventories which could lead to markdowns and increased marked out-of-stock charges and promotions, which would result in a decrease in our merchandise
margin.
Our short-term business strategy depends in large part upon our ability to successfully implement our planned improvements to merchandising, reducing
expenses across all areas, increasing boutique team productivity and optimizing our existing real estate portfolio.
Our business short-term strategy is focused on improving our merchandise assortment, reducing expenses across all areas of operations, increasing boutique
team productivity and rationalizing our real estate portfolio, with the goal of reducing the number of marginally profitable boutiques, through rent reductions
or boutique closures, in an effort to increase the comparable sales and overall profitability of our remaining boutique footprint. As is the case with any
strategy, our turnaround plan could result in unintended consequences that make executing the turnaround plan more challenging. For example, our focus on
increasing boutique team productivity may make it more difficult for us to continue to offer a personalized shopping experience for our customers, which
may in turn have a negative impact on our conversion rates. The estimated costs and benefits associated with these initiatives may vary materially based on
various factors including: timing in execution, availability of funds to support execution, customer response to merchandise assortments, our leadership
being able to continue to motivate and manage our employees, outcome of negotiations with landlords, and changes in management’s assumptions and
projections. As a result of these events and circumstances, delays and unexpected costs may occur, which could result in our not realizing all, or any portion
of, the anticipated benefits of our short-term business strategy.
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We may not be able to efficiently source and distribute the merchandise quantities necessary to support our operations.
Our success depends on our ability to source and distribute merchandise efficiently. The sourcing of our merchandise is dependent, in part, on our
relationships with our vendors and our vendors’ confidence in our business. If we are unable to maintain these relationships, we may not be able to continue
to source merchandise at competitive prices that appeal to our customers. If we do not succeed in maintaining good relationships with our vendors and
cannot identify new vendors to meet the demand for additional merchandise production, the Company could see its costs go up or the delivery time on its
new orders substantially increase.
Increases in the cost of the raw materials or other inputs used in the production of our merchandise could result in the loss of suppliers, increase our cost of
goods sold and occupancy costs and adversely affect our financial results.
The success of our business is in part driven by the compelling price-value proposition we offer our customers. If the costs of the raw materials, particularly
cotton, leather and synthetics, used in producing our merchandise increase, our vendors would look to pass these cost increases along to us. The price and
availability of such raw materials may fluctuate significantly, depending on many factors which are outside of our control, including commodity prices, crop
yields and weather patterns. If our vendors attempt to pass any cost increases on to us and we refuse to pay the increases, we could lose certain vendors as
suppliers, resulting in the risk that we could not fill our orders in a timely manner or at all. If we pay the increases, we could either attempt to raise retail
prices, which could adversely affect our sales and our brand image, or choose not to raise prices, which could adversely affect the profitability of our
merchandise sales.
Changes in laws affecting our supply chain and portions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act relating to conflict minerals,
may adversely affect the sourcing, availability and pricing of certain materials which may be used in the manufacture of some of our products.
If we are unable to effectively operate, replace or upgrade any of our existing information technology systems, our operations could be disrupted which
could adversely affect our financial results.
The efficient operation of our business is significantly dependent on our information technology systems, including our ability to operate them effectively
and successfully implementing new systems and controls, including, for example, the replacement of our legacy point-of-sale system and introduction of new
customer relationship system which we completed in fiscal year 2017, as well as our implementation of a new warehouse management system for ecommerce
in fiscal year 2018. Any failure of these systems to operate effectively or any difficulty in implementing any future information technology systems changes
could disrupt and adversely impact the promptness and accuracy of our merchandise distribution, transaction processing, financial accounting and reporting,
including the implementation of our internal controls over financial reporting, the efficiency of our operations and our ability to properly forecast earnings
and cash requirements. Any resulting disruptions could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.
Our business is sensitive to consumer spending and economic conditions.
Consumer purchases of discretionary retail items and specialty retail products, which include our apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts, may be adversely
affected by national and regional economic conditions such as employment levels, salary and wage levels, the availability of consumer credit, inflation, high
interest rates, high tax rates, high fuel prices and consumer confidence with respect to current and future economic conditions. Consumer purchases may
decline during recessionary periods or at other times when unemployment is higher or disposable income is lower. These risks may be exacerbated for
retailers like us that focus significantly on selling discretionary fashion merchandise. Consumer willingness to make discretionary purchases may decline,
may stall or may be slow to increase due to national and regional economic conditions. Our financial performance is particularly susceptible to economic and
other conditions in regions or states where we have a significant number of boutiques. There remains considerable uncertainty and volatility in the national
and global economy. Further or future slowdowns or disruptions in the economy could adversely affect mall traffic and new mall and shopping center
development and could materially and adversely affect us and our business strategy. We may not be able to sustain or increase our current net sales if there is
a decline in consumer spending.
A deterioration of economic conditions and future recessionary periods may exacerbate the other risks faced by our business, including those risks we
encounter as we attempt to execute our business plans. Such risks could be exacerbated individually or collectively.
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We operate in the highly competitive specialty retail apparel and accessories industry and the size and resources of some of our competitors may allow
them to compete more effectively than we can, which could adversely impact market share.
We face intense competition in the specialty retail apparel and accessories industry. We compete on the basis of a combination of factors, including price,
breadth, quality and style of merchandise, as well as our in-boutique experience and level of customer service, our brand image and our ability to anticipate,
identify and respond to new and changing fashion trends. While we believe that we compete primarily with specialty retailers and internet businesses that
specialize in women’s apparel and accessories, we also face competition from department stores, mass merchandisers and value retailers. We believe our
primary competitors include specialty apparel and accessories retailers that offer their own private labels. We also face intense competition from the
ecommerce platforms of our brick and mortar competitors, as well as internet-based retailers due to the continuing shift in customer demand away from brick
and mortar to ecommerce. Our expansion into markets served by our competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of existing competitors into our
markets could have an adverse effect on our business.
We also compete with a wide variety of large and small retailers for customers, vendors, suitable boutique locations and personnel. The competitive
landscape we face, particularly among specialty retailers, is subject to rapid change as new competitors emerge and existing competitors change their product
offerings. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to compete successfully and navigate the shifts in our market.
Many of our competitors are, and many of our potential competitors may be, larger and have greater name recognition and access to greater financial,
marketing and other resources. Therefore, these competitors may be able to adapt to changes in trends and customer desires more quickly, devote greater
resources to the marketing and sale of their products, generate greater brand recognition or adopt more aggressive pricing policies than we can. As a result, we
may lose market share, which could reduce our sales and adversely affect our results of operations. Many of our competitors also utilize advertising and
marketing media, including advertising through the use of direct mail, newspapers, magazines, billboards, television and radio, which may provide them with
greater brand recognition than we have given our very limited use of traditional advertising.
Our competitors may also sell certain products or substantially similar products through the internet or through outlet centers or discount stores, increasing
the competitive pressure for those products. Additionally, the internet and other new technologies facilitate competitive entry and comparison shopping. We
cannot assure you that we will continue to be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors. Our expansion into markets served by our
competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of existing competitors into our markets could have a material adverse effect on us. Competitive
forces and pressures may also intensify if our presence in the retail marketplace grows.
We do not possess exclusive rights to many of the elements that comprise our in-boutique experience and merchandise offerings. Some specialty retailers
offer a personalized shopping experience that in certain ways is similar to the one we strive to provide to our customers. Our competitors may seek to emulate
facets of our business strategy and in-boutique experience, which could result in a reduction of any competitive advantage or special appeal that we might
possess. Some of our merchandise offerings are sold to us on a non-exclusive basis. As a result, our current and future competitors, especially those with
greater financial, marketing or other resources, may be able to duplicate or improve upon some or all of the elements of our in-boutique experience or
merchandise offerings that we believe are important in differentiating our boutiques and our customers’ shopping experience. If our competitors were to
duplicate or improve upon some or all of the elements of our in-boutique experience or product offerings, our competitive position and our business could
suffer.
Our ability to attract customers to our boutiques depends on locating our boutiques in suitable locations. Conditions or changes affecting boutique
locations, including any further decrease in customer traffic, could cause our sales to be less than historical values and less than expected.
Boutique locations and related sales and customer traffic may be adversely affected by, among other things, economic conditions in a particular area,
competition from nearby retailers or online retailers selling similar merchandise, changing lifestyle choices of consumers in a particular market and the
closing or decline in popularity of other businesses located near our boutiques. Additionally, many of our boutiques are located in shopping malls and other
retail centers that benefit from the ability of “anchor” retail tenants, generally large department centers, and other attractions, to generate sufficient levels of
consumer traffic in the vicinity of our boutiques. We, along with numerous other retailers, including anchor retail tenants, have announced the closure of a
significant number of stores, mainly in mall and anchor store locations. Changes in areas around our boutique locations or changes in consumer shopping
patterns, including a continued shift of consumer spending from brick-and-mortar to online, that result in reductions in customer foot traffic or otherwise
render the locations unsuitable could cause our sales to be less than historical values and less than expected. In addition, we may have to respond to these
changes by closing additional stores, increasing markdowns or increasing promotions to reduce excess inventory in certain boutiques, which could have a
material adverse effect on our margins and operating results.
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Our business depends on a strong brand image, and if we are not able to maintain and enhance our brand, particularly in new markets where we have
limited brand recognition, we may be unable to attract a sufficient number of customers to our boutiques or sell sufficient quantities of our merchandise.
We believe that our brand image and brand awareness is an important factor to the success of our business. We also believe that maintaining and enhancing
our brand image particularly in newer markets where we have limited brand recognition is important to maintaining and expanding our customer base.
Maintaining and enhancing our brand image may require us to make substantial investments in areas such as merchandising, marketing, boutique operations,
community relations, boutique promotions and employee training. These investments may be substantial and may not ultimately be successful. If they are
not successful, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
Our use of traditional advertising channels is limited and if we fail to adequately connect with our customer base, our business could be adversely affected.
We have historically focused on organic, viral and in-boutique marketing to capture the interest of our customers and drive them to our boutiques and
website. We limit our use of traditional advertising channels, such as newspapers, magazines, billboards, television, direct mail and radio, which are used by
some of our competitors. Although we continue to work to strengthen and evolve our marketing programs, including through the use of investments in
influencers in digital and social media, there is no guarantee that such efforts will be successful. While we expect to decrease our marketing spend in fiscal
2019, we do expect to further increase our use of digital advertising, including social media, such as Facebook, Instagram, Pinterest and Twitter, in the future.
If our marketing efforts are not successful, there may be no immediately available or cost effective alternative marketing channel for us to use to build or
maintain brand awareness. Failure to successfully connect with our target customers in new and existing markets could harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
We depend on our senior management personnel and may not be able to retain or replace these individuals or recruit additional personnel, which could
harm our business.
Our future success is substantially dependent on establishing and maintaining an experienced senior management team. We are currently experiencing a
Chief Executive Officer transition. On January 29, 2019 Mr. Steven P. Lawrence, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, announced his resignation
effective February 1, 2019. On February 4, 2019, our board of directors appointed Mr. Michael Prendergast of Alvarez & Marsal as our Interim Chief
Executive Officer. In February 2019, both our Senior Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer and Senior Vice President, Merchandise Planning and
Allocation departed the Company and in April 2019, our Senior Vice President and General Counsel resigned. Our business could be adversely affected if we
are unable to find a suitable permanent replacements or if the search for such replacement is not completed timely. The loss of services of one or more of our
senior management could impair our ability to manage our business effectively and could have an adverse effect on our business, as we may not be able to
find suitable individuals to replace them on a timely basis or at all. Any departures of key personnel could be viewed in a negative light by investors and
analysts, which could cause our common stock price to decline. We do not maintain key person insurance on any employee.
In addition to our senior management, we have other employees in positions, including those employees responsible for our merchandising and operations
departments that, if vacant, could cause a temporary disruption in our business until such positions are filled.
Our ability to successfully open and operate new boutiques in a timely and cost-effective manner is subject to a number of risks.
While we are currently focused on optimizing our existing real estate fleet and do not currently intend to open more than four new boutiques in the
foreseeable future, we believe we will have an opportunity to grow our boutique base in the United States and that our long-term strategy depends upon our
ability to successfully open new boutiques. The success of this strategy will depend largely upon our ability to optimize our existing real estate fleet and
improve our operating margins, our ability to find a sufficient number of suitable locations, our ability to recruit, hire and train qualified personnel to operate
our new boutiques and our ability to scale our infrastructure to successfully integrate our new boutiques.
Our ability to successfully open and operate new boutiques depends on many factors that may be outside of our control including, among others, our ability
to:
·

optimize our existing real estate fleet and improve our operating margins;

·

identify desirable boutique locations, primarily in malls, lifestyle centers, street locations and strip centers, as well as other types of shopping venues
and outlet malls, which may be difficult and costly, particularly, in an improving real estate environment and as customer shopping patterns evolve;
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·

negotiate acceptable lease terms, including favorable levels of tenant allowances, which may be difficult, particularly in an improving real estate
environment;

·

maintain out-of-pocket, build-out costs in line with our boutique economic model, including by receiving expected levels of tenant allowances for a
portion of our construction expenses, and managing these construction expenses at reasonable levels, which may be difficult, particularly in an
improving real estate environment;

·

efficiently source and distribute additional merchandise;

·

hire, train and retain a growing workforce of boutique managers, boutique associates and other personnel;

·

successfully integrate new boutiques into our existing control structure and operations, including our information technology systems;

·

efficiently expand the operations of our distribution facility to meet the needs of a growing boutique network;

·

identify and satisfy the merchandise and other preferences of our customers in new geographic areas and markets; and

·

address competition, merchandising, marketing, distribution and other challenges encountered in connection with expansion into new geographic
areas and markets.

We may open new boutiques in or near the areas where we have existing boutiques. To the extent that we open boutiques in markets where we already have
existing boutiques, we may experience reduced net sales at those existing boutiques. Also, as we expand into new geographic areas, we will need to
successfully identify and satisfy the fashion preferences of customers in those areas. We will need to address competition, merchandising, marketing,
distribution and other challenges encountered in connection with any expansion and our limited brand recognition in new markets may limit our expansion
strategy and cause our business and growth to suffer. New geographic areas may also have different operational characteristics, including employment and
labor, logistics, real estate and legal requirements which may divert financial, operation and managerial resources from our existing operations.
Finally, newly opened boutiques may not be received as well as, or achieve net sales, profitability levels or payback period on our net investment comparable
to those of, our existing boutiques in our estimated time periods, or at all. If our boutiques fail to achieve, or are unable to sustain, acceptable net sales and
profitability levels, our business may be materially harmed and we may incur significant costs associated with closing or relocating boutiques. Our current
expansion plans are only estimates, and the actual number of boutiques we open or close each year and the actual number of suitable locations for our new
boutiques could differ significantly from these estimates. If we fail to successfully open and operate new boutiques and execute our long-term growth plans,
the price of our common stock could decline.
If we are unable to find, train and retain key personnel, including new boutique employees that reflect our brand image and embody our culture, we may
not be able to grow or sustain our operations.
Our success depends in part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a sufficient number of boutique employees, including boutique managers, who
understand and appreciate our customers, brand and corporate culture, and are able to adequately and effectively represent our culture and establish
credibility with our customers. Like most retailers, we experience significant employee turnover rates, particularly among boutique employees. Our current
operations require us to continuously hire and train personnel. If we are unable to hire and retain boutique personnel capable of consistently providing a high
level of customer service, as demonstrated by their enthusiasm for our culture, understanding of our customers and knowledge of the merchandise we offer,
the performance of our existing and new boutiques could be materially adversely affected and our brand image may be negatively impacted. There is a high
level of competition for experienced, qualified personnel in the retail industry and we compete for personnel with a variety of companies looking to hire for
retail positions. Our initiative to decrease expenses and to increase boutique team productivity may make it more difficult for us to retain employees.
Historically, we have prided ourselves on our commitment to employee growth and development and we focus on promoting from within our team. If we have
challenges in staffing our new boutiques, particularly at the boutique manager level, it could have an adverse effect on our ability to maintain a cohesive and
consistently strong team, which in turn could have an adverse impact on our business. If we are unable to attract, train and retain employees in the future, we
may not be able to serve our customers effectively, thus reducing our ability to profitably operate our new and existing boutiques.
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Union attempts to organize our employees could negatively affect our business.
None of our employees are currently subject to a collective bargaining agreement. However, in the future, unions may attempt to organize all or part of our
employee base at certain boutiques or within certain regions. Responding to such organization attempts may distract management and employees and may
have a negative financial impact on individual boutiques, or on our business as a whole.
We have one corporate headquarters and distribution facility and have not yet implemented disaster recovery procedures. Disruptions to the operations at
that location have in the past, and could in the future, have an adverse effect on our business operations.
Our corporate headquarters and our only distribution facility are located in Houston, Texas. Our distribution facility supports both our boutiques and our
ecommerce. Most of our merchandise is shipped from our vendors to the distribution facility and then packaged and shipped from our distribution facility to
our boutiques and our ecommerce customers. The success of our boutiques depends on the timely receipt of merchandise because they must receive
merchandise in a timely manner in order to stay current with the fashion preferences of our customers. The efficient flow of our merchandise requires that we
have adequate capacity and uninterrupted service in our distribution facility to support both our current level of operations, and the anticipated increased
levels that may follow from our growth plans. We believe that our current distribution facility is capable of supporting our growth plans for several years.
If we encounter difficulties associated with our distribution facility or if it were to shut down for any reason, including fire, hurricanes, floods, or other natural
disaster or severe weather, we could face inventory shortages resulting in “out-of-stock” conditions in our boutiques, and delays in shipments to our
customers, resulting in significantly higher costs and longer lead times associated with distributing our merchandise. See “The current geographic
concentration of our boutiques creates an exposure to local economies, regional downturns and severe weather or other catastrophic occurrences that may
materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations” below. Also, most of our computer equipment and senior management,
including critical resources dedicated to merchandising, financial and administrative functions are located at our corporate headquarters. Our management
and our operations and distribution staff would need to find an alternative location, causing further disruption and expense to our business and operations.
For example, in August 2017, Hurricane Harvey hit south Texas which resulted in the shutdown of corporate headquarters for a few days and disruption in our
supply chain for several weeks.
We recognize the need for, and are in the early stages of, developing disaster recovery, business continuity and document retention plans that would allow us
to be operational despite casualties or unforeseen events impacting our corporate headquarters or distribution center. Without disaster recovery, business
continuity and document retention plans, if we encounter difficulties or disasters with our distribution facility or at our corporate headquarters, our critical
systems, operations and information may not be restored in a timely manner, or at all, and this could have an adverse effect on our business.
Our business requires that we lease substantial amounts of space and we may not be able to continue to lease space on terms as favorable as the leases
negotiated in the past and the costs of exiting leases at boutiques we have identified for closure may be greater than we estimate or could be greater than
the funds we raise to address closure costs, if necessary.
We do not own any real estate. Instead, we lease all of our boutique locations, as well as our corporate headquarters and distribution facility in Houston,
Texas. Our boutiques are leased from third parties, with initial lease terms of five to ten years. Many of our lease agreements also have additional five-year
renewal options. We believe that we have been able to negotiate favorable rental rates and tenant allowances over the last few years due, in large part, to the
strength of our reputation as tenants, the state of the economy and higher than usual vacancy rates in a number of regional malls and shopping centers. These
trends may not continue, including as a result of our effort to optimize our lease expense structure for existing and boutiques, and there is no guarantee that
we will be able to continue to negotiate such favorable terms. Many of our leases have early cancellation clauses, which permit the lease to be terminated by
us or the landlord if certain sales levels are not met in specific periods or if the shopping venue does not meet specified occupancy standards. In addition to
fixed minimum lease payments, most of our boutique leases provide for additional rental payments based on a percentage of sales, or “percentage rent,” if
sales at the respective boutiques exceed specified levels, as well as the payment of common area maintenance charges, real property insurance and real estate
taxes. Many of our lease agreements have defined escalating rent provisions over the initial term and any extensions. Increases in our already substantial
occupancy costs and difficulty in identifying economically suitable new boutique locations could have significant negative consequences, which include:
·

requiring that a greater portion of our available cash be applied to pay our rental obligations, thus reducing cash available for other purposes and
reducing our profitability;

·

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions; and

·

limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in, our business or in the industry in which we compete.
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We depend on cash flow from operations to pay our lease expenses and to fulfill our other cash needs. If our business does not generate sufficient cash flow
from operating activities to fund these expenses and needs and sufficient funds are not otherwise available to us, we may not be able to service our lease
expenses, grow our business, respond to competitive challenges or fund our other liquidity and capital needs, which could harm our business. Additional
sites that we lease may be subject to long-term non-cancelable leases if we are unable to negotiate our current standard lease terms. If an existing or future
boutique is not profitable, and we decide to close it, we may nonetheless be committed to perform our obligations under the applicable lease including,
among other things, paying the base rent for the balance of the lease term. Moreover, even if a lease has an early cancellation clause, we may not satisfy the
contractual requirements for early cancellation under that lease. If we are not able to enter into new leases or renew existing leases on terms acceptable to us,
this could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.
In connection with our strategy to optimize our real estate portfolio, our preferred approach to closing boutiques is to enter into lease termination agreements
with respect to the leases at such boutiques, rather than to assign leases or to sublease the boutique premises because it allows us to avoid the risk of future
liability under the leases. The costs of terminating the leases for boutiques we close may be greater than we currently estimate, in which case we may need to
borrow under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility. Further the cost to fund such liabilities is often significant and is funded through cash flow from
operations. In addition, we could encounter difficulty raising the funds necessary to cover a part of the costs of terminating the leases for boutiques we intend
to close. Such circumstances could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Our ability to obtain merchandise on a timely basis at competitive prices could suffer as a result of any deterioration or change in our vendor relationships
or events that adversely affect our vendors or their ability to obtain financing for their operations.
We have many important vendor relationships that we believe provide us with a competitive advantage. We do not own or operate any manufacturing
facilities. Instead, we purchase our merchandise from third-party vendors. Our top 10 vendors sourced approximately 28% of our merchandise in fiscal year
2018 with no single vendor accounting for more than 5% of our purchases. Our business and financial performance depend in large part on our ability to
evaluate merchandise quickly for style and then modify any undesirable designs or to improve the quality, look, and fit of the item. We do not have longterm contracts with any of these vendors and we generally operate without any contractual assurances of continued supply, pricing or access to new products.
Rather, we receive and review samples almost daily for fit and fashion evaluation. Maintaining positive working relationships with our vendors is an
important element of our business. Any of our vendors could discontinue supplying us with desired products in sufficient quantities for a variety of reasons.
The benefits we currently experience from our vendor relationships could be adversely affected if our vendors:
·

choose to stop providing merchandise samples to us or otherwise discontinue selling merchandise to us;

·

raise the prices they charge us;

·

change pricing terms to require us to pay on delivery or upfront, including as a result of changes in the credit relationships some of our vendors have
with their various lending institutions;

·

reduce our access to styles, brands and merchandise by entering into broad exclusivity arrangements with our competitors or otherwise in the
marketplace;

·

sell similar merchandise to our competitors with similar or better pricing, many of whom already purchase merchandise in significantly greater
volume and, in some cases, at lower prices than we do;

·

lose confidence in our business;

·

lengthen their lead times; or

·

initiate or expand sales of apparel and accessories to retail customers directly through their own stores, catalogs or on the internet and compete with
us directly.

We historically have established good working relationships with many small- to mid-sized vendors that often have limited resources, production capacities
and operating histories. Market and economic events that adversely impact our vendors could impair our ability to obtain merchandise in sufficient
quantities. Such events include difficulties or problems associated with our vendors’ business, finances, labor, ability to import merchandise, costs,
production, insurance and reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to acquire desired merchandise in sufficient quantities on acceptable
terms or at all in the future, especially if we need significantly different amounts of inventory in connection with any changes in our business needs. We may
need to develop new relationships with larger vendors, as our current vendors may be unable to supply us with needed quantities and we may not be able to
find similar merchandise on the same terms from larger vendors. If we are unable to acquire suitable merchandise in sufficient quantities, at acceptable prices
with adequate delivery times due to the loss of or a deterioration or change in our relationship with one or more of our key vendors or events harmful to our
vendors occur, it may adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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A failure in our ecommerce operations could significantly disrupt our business and lead to reduced sales, growth prospects and reputational damage.
While accounting for only 9.0% and 7.0% of our net sales in fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, our ecommerce operations is growing and is an
important element of our brand and relationship with our customers. While we do not plan to make any significant investments in our ecommerce operations
in fiscal year 2019, further expanding ecommerce is an important part of our strategy. In addition to changing consumer preferences, shifting traffic patterns
and related customer acquisition costs and buying trends in our ecommerce, we are vulnerable to certain additional risks and uncertainties associated with
ecommerce sales, including rapid changes in technology, diversion of sales from our boutiques, credit card fraud, website downtime and other technical
failures, security breaches, consumer privacy concerns, changes in state tax regimes and government regulation of internet activities. Our failure to
successfully respond to these risks and uncertainties could reduce our ecommerce sales, increase our costs, diminish our growth prospects, and damage our
brand, which could negatively impact our results of operations and stock price. Our lack of investment in our ecommerce operations in the short-term may
exacerbate these risks.
There is no guarantee that we will be able to further expand our ecommerce operations. Many of our competitors already have ecommerce businesses that are
substantially larger and more developed than ours, which places us at a competitive disadvantage. Moreover, online shopping has benefitted from
technology improving the online shopping experience and, in many cases, has resulted in a shift of consumer spending from brick-and-mortar to online
where competition is even greater since “pure play” internet retailers do not have significant occupancy costs and boutique payroll expenses like we do. If we
are unable to further expand our ecommerce operations, our growth plans will suffer and the price of our common stock could decline.
System security risk issues, including our failure to protect our customers’ privacy and disruption of our internal operations or information technology
systems, could harm our reputation and adversely affect our financial results and stock price.
Experienced computer programmers and hackers, or even internal users, may be able to penetrate or create systems disruptions or cause shutdowns of our
network security or that of third-party companies with which we have contracted to provide services. We generally collect and store customer information for
marketing purposes and any compromise of customer information could subject us to customer or government litigation and harm our reputation, which
could adversely affect our business and growth. Breaches of our system or of third party companies with which we have contracted to provide services, which
would compromise our customers’ private information, might cause our customers to lose confidence in our ability to protect their personal information,
which could cause them to discontinue usage of our website or stop shopping with us altogether. The loss of confidence from a significant data security
breach involving employees could also hurt our reputation, cause employee recruiting and retention challenges, increase our labor costs and adversely affect
our business and financial results. Moreover, we could incur significant expenses or disruptions of our operations in connection with system failures or data
breaches. An increasing number of websites and retailers, including several large internet companies and retailers, have disclosed breaches of their security,
some of which have involved sophisticated and highly targeted attacks on portions of their sites. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access,
disable or degrade service or sabotage systems, change frequently and often are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures. Sophisticated hardware and operating system software and applications that we
buy or license from third-parties may contain defects in design or manufacture, including “bugs” and other problems that could unexpectedly interfere with
the security and operation of the systems. The costs to us to eliminate or alleviate security problems, viruses and bugs, or any problems associated with the
outsourced services provided to us, could be significant, and efforts to address these problems could result in interruptions, delays or cessation of service that
may impede our sales, distribution or other critical functions.
Almost all states have adopted breach of data security statutes or regulations that require notification to consumers if the security of their personal
information is breached, and at least one state has adopted regulations requiring every company that maintains or stores personal information to adopt a
comprehensive written information security program. Governmental focus on data security may lead to additional legislative action, and the increased
emphasis on information security may lead customers to request that we take additional measures to enhance security or restrict the manner in which we
collect and use customer information to gather insights into customer behavior and craft our marketing programs. As a result, we may have to modify our
business systems and practices with the goal of further improving data security, which would result in reduced net sales, increased expenditures and operating
complexity. Any compromise of our security or accidental loss or theft of customer data in our possession or in the possession of third parties with which we
have contracted to provide services could result in a violation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial exposure and damage to
our reputation, which could adversely impact our business, results of operations and stock price.
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Our inability or failure to recognize, respond to and effectively manage the accelerated impact of social media could materially adversely impact our
business.
There has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social media websites (such as Facebook, Snapchat, Twitter
and Instagram), and other forms of internet-based communications which allow individuals access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested
persons. Many social media platforms immediately publish the content to their subscribers and participants posts, often without filters or checks on accuracy
of the content posted. The dissemination of information online could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, regardless of
the information’s accuracy. The harm may be immediate without affording us an opportunity for redress or correction.
Other risks associated with the use of social media include improper disclosure of proprietary information, negative comments about our business, fraud and
out-of-date information. The inappropriate use of social media by our customers or employees could increase our costs, lead to litigation or result in negative
publicity that could damage our reputation.
The current geographic concentration of our boutiques creates an exposure to local economies, regional downturns and severe weather or other
catastrophic occurrences that may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
We operated 77 boutiques in Texas as of February 2, 2019, making Texas our largest market, representing approximately 11% of our total boutiques. We also
have boutique concentration in California, Florida and the Northeast region, operating 62 boutiques, 53 boutiques and 128 boutiques in these regions,
respectively, as of February 2, 2019. As a result, our business is currently more susceptible to regional conditions than the operations of more geographically
diversified competitors, and we are vulnerable to economic downturns in those regions. Any unforeseen events or circumstances that negatively affect these
areas could materially adversely affect our sales and profitability. These factors include, among other things, changes in demographics and population and
severe weather or natural disasters.
Further, our corporate headquarters and only distribution center are currently located at a single facility in Houston, Texas. Our single distribution center
receives, stores and distributes merchandise to all of our boutiques and fulfills all sales for our ecommerce website. Most of our computer equipment and
senior management, including critical resources dedicated to merchandising and financial and administrative functions, are located at our corporate
headquarters. As described elsewhere in the risk factors in this report, we do not currently have adequate disaster recovery systems and plans at our corporate
headquarters and distribution facility. As a result, our business may be more susceptible to regional natural disasters, severe weather and catastrophes than the
operations of more geographically diversified competitors. See “We have one corporate headquarters and distribution facility and have not yet implemented
disaster recovery procedures. Disruptions to the operations at that location could have an adverse effect on our business operations” above.
A substantial number of our boutiques are located in the northeastern and southeastern United States. These regions of the United States, Texas and other
states along the Gulf Coast, in particular, are prone to severe weather conditions. For example, hurricanes have passed through these regions and caused
extensive damage. Adverse weather conditions impacting these regions of the United States generally could harm our business, results of operations and
financial condition. Severe weather can also result in weather-related supply disruptions, which could impact our ability to supply boutiques as was the case
of Hurricane Harvey which hit south Texas in August 2017 and caused shutdown of our corporate headquarters for a few days and disrupted our supply chain
for several weeks. Weather conditions can affect our net sales because inclement weather may discourage travel or require temporary boutique closures,
thereby reducing customer traffic. Unseasonably warmer weather during typically colder months or unreasonably colder weather during typically warmer
months can also affect the seasonal composition and demand for our merchandise, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
All of our boutique locations expose us to additional diverse risks, given that natural disasters or other unanticipated catastrophes, such as
telecommunications failures, cyber-attacks, fires or terrorist attacks, can occur anywhere and could cause disruptions in our operations. Extensive or multiple
disruptions in our operations, whether at our boutiques or our corporate headquarters and distribution center, due to natural disasters, severe weather or other
catastrophes could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and stock price.
Our results may be adversely affected by fluctuations in energy costs.
Energy costs have fluctuated dramatically in the past and may fluctuate in the future. These fluctuations may result in an increase in our transportation costs
for distribution, utility costs for our retail boutiques and costs to purchase product from our vendors. A continual rise in energy costs could adversely affect
consumer spending and demand for our merchandise and increase our operating costs and we may be unable to pass along to our customers such increased
cost, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and stock price.
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Our net sales and merchandise inventory fluctuate on a seasonal basis, leaving our operating results susceptible to adverse changes in seasonal shopping
patterns, weather and related risks.
Due to the seasonal nature of the retail industry, we have historically experienced and expect to continue to experience some fluctuations in our net sales and
net income (loss). Our net sales and earnings are typically highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end holiday season. Net sales during this period
cannot be used as an accurate indicator of annual results. Likewise, as is the case with many retailers of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts, we typically
experience lower net sales in the first fiscal quarter relative to other quarters. If for any reason, including for example poor weather conditions, soft economic
environments or loss of consumer confidence, our net sales were below seasonal norms or expectations during typically higher-volume time periods, our net
sales, inventory levels and results of operations could be adversely affected. In order to prepare for these higher-volume periods, we must order and keep in
stock significantly more merchandise than we carry during other parts of the year. This inventory build-up may require us to expend cash faster than is
generated by our operations during these periods. Any unanticipated decrease in demand for our merchandise during peak shopping periods, such as our
back-to-school assortment in fiscal year 2017 that did not resonate with customers, could result in excess inventory levels which could require us to sell or
dispose excess inventory at a substantial markdown, which could have an adverse effect on our business, profitability and brand image. We have
experienced, and may continue to experience variability in net sales as a result of a variety of other factors, including the timing of new boutique openings
and closing of underperforming boutiques, customer response to our product offerings, boutique events, other marketing activities, sales tax holidays and
other holidays, which may cause our results of operations to fluctuate on a quarterly basis and relative to corresponding periods in prior years.
If our vendors fail to comply with applicable laws, including a failure to use acceptable labor practices, or if our vendors suffer disruptions in their
businesses, we could suffer adverse business consequences.
Our vendors source the merchandise sold in our boutiques and our ecommerce website from manufacturers both inside and outside of the United States.
Although each of our purchase orders is subject to our vendor manuals or policies, which require compliance with labor, immigration, manufacturing and
product safety, environmental and other laws, we do not supervise, control or audit our vendors or the manufacturers that produce the merchandise we sell.
The violation, or perception of any violation, of any labor, immigration, manufacturing safety or other laws by any of our vendors or their U.S. and non-U.S.
manufacturers, such as use of child labor, or the divergence of the labor practices followed by any of our vendors or these manufacturers from those generally
accepted in the United States, could damage our brand image or subject us to boycotts by our customers or activist groups.
Any event causing a sudden disruption of manufacturing or imports, including the imposition of additional import restrictions, could interrupt, or otherwise
disrupt the shipment of finished products to us by our vendors and materially harm our operations. Political and financial instability outside the United
States, strikes, adverse weather conditions or natural disasters that may occur or acts of war or terrorism in the United States or worldwide, may affect the
production, shipment or receipt of merchandise. These factors, which are beyond our control, could materially hurt our business, financial condition and
results of operations or may require us to modify our current business practices or incur increased costs.
Changes in laws, including employment laws, tax laws, imposition of new tariffs and laws related to our merchandise could make conducting our business
more expensive or otherwise cause us to change the way we do business.
We are subject to numerous regulations, including taxation, labor and employment, truth-in-advertising, consumer protection, product safety, environmental
and zoning and occupancy laws and ordinances that regulate retailers generally or govern the promotion and sale of merchandise and the operation of
boutiques and warehouse facilities. If these regulations were to change or were violated by our management, employees or vendors, the costs of certain goods
could increase, or we could experience delays in shipments of our goods, be subject to fines, penalties or other liabilities or suffer reputational harm, which
could reduce demand for our merchandise and hurt our business and results of operations.
In addition to increased regulatory compliance requirements, changes in laws could make the ordinary conduct of our business more expensive or require us
to change the way we do business. Laws related to employee benefits and treatment of employees, including laws related to limitations on employee hours,
immigration laws, child labor laws, supervisory status, leaves of absence, mandated health benefits or overtime pay, could also negatively impact us, such as
by increasing compensation and benefits costs for overtime and medical expenses. Moreover, changes in product safety or other consumer protection laws
(including the implementation of new privacy protection laws) could lead to increased costs to us for some merchandise, or additional labor costs associated
with readying merchandise for sale. It is often difficult for us to plan and prepare for potential changes to applicable laws, and future actions or payments
related to these changes could be material to us.
We may incur additional indebtedness in the future, which may require us to use a substantial portion of our cash flow to service debt and limit our
financial and operating flexibility in important ways.
We may incur additional indebtedness in the future. Any borrowings under any future debt financing will require interest payments and need to be repaid or
refinanced, could require us to divert funds identified for other purposes to debt service and would create additional cash demands and could impair our
liquidity position and add financial risk for us. Diverting funds identified for other purposes for debt service may adversely affect our business and growth
prospects. If we cannot generate sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt, we may need to refinance our debt, dispose of assets or issue equity
to obtain necessary funds. We do not know whether we would be able to take any of these actions on a timely basis, on terms satisfactory to us, or at all.
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Our level of indebtedness has important consequences to you and your investment in our common stock. For example, our level of indebtedness may:
·

require us to use a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay interest and principal on our debt, which would reduce the funds
available to us for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

·

limit our ability to pay future dividends;

·

limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, expansion plans and other investments, which may limit
our ability to implement our business strategy;

·

heighten our vulnerability to downturns in our business, the specialty apparel and accessories retail industry or in the general economy and limit our
flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the specialty apparel and accessories retail industry; or

·

prevent us from taking advantage of business opportunities as they arise or successfully carrying out our plans to expand our boutique base and
product offerings.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash flow from operations and future borrowings may not be available to us in amounts sufficient to enable us to
make payments on our indebtedness or to fund our operations.
The terms of our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility do, and the terms of any additional debt financing may, restrict our current and future operations,
which could adversely affect our ability to manage our operations and respond to changes in our business.
Our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility contains, and any additional debt financing we may incur would likely contain, covenants that restrict our
operations, including limitations on our ability to incur additional debt, grant liens, make certain investments, acquisitions loans and advances, sell assets,
pay dividends or make distributions or other restricted payments, prepay other indebtedness, engage in mergers or consolidations, change the business
conducted by Francesca’s Collections and its subsidiaries, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, enter into agreements that restrict dividends from
subsidiaries or amend certain charter documents and material agreements governing subordinated and junior indebtedness. A failure by us to comply with the
covenants or financial ratios contained in our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility or any additional debt financing we may incur could result in an event
of default, which could adversely affect our ability to respond to changes in our business and manage our operations. Upon the occurrence of an event of
default, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding to be due and payable and exercise other remedies. If the indebtedness under our Asset
Based Revolving Credit Facility or any additional debt financing we may incur were to be accelerated, our future financial condition could be materially
adversely affected.
We are involved on an ongoing basis in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business or otherwise that could distract management from our business
activities and result in significant liability or damage to our brand.
We face the risk of litigation and other claims against us. We are involved on an ongoing basis in litigation arising in the ordinary course of our business or
otherwise, which may include class actions involving consumers, shareholders or employees, and claims relating to employees, commercial disputes,
landlord-tenant disputes, intellectual property issues, product-oriented allegations and slip and fall claims. These actions and claims can raise complex
factual and legal issues that are subject to risks and uncertainties and could require significant management time. Litigation and other actions and claims
against us could result in unexpected expenses and liabilities, which could materially adversely affect our operations and our reputation.
We may be unable to protect our trademarks or other intellectual property rights.
We believe that our trademarks are integral to our boutique design, our ecommerce and our success in building our brand image and customer loyalty. We
rely on trademark registrations and common law trademark rights to protect the distinctiveness of our brand and have registered those trademarks that we
believe are important to our business with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We cannot provide assurance that these registrations will prevent
imitation of our name, merchandising concept, boutique design or private label merchandise, or the infringement of our other intellectual property rights by
others. In most cases, the merchandise we sell is purchased on a non-exclusive basis from vendors that also sell to our competitors. While we use our brand
name on these items, our competitors may seek to replicate aspects of our business strategy and in-boutique experience, thereby diluting the experience we
offer and adversely affecting our brand and competitive position. Imitation of our name, concept, boutique design or merchandise in a manner that projects
lesser quality or carries a negative connotation of our brand image could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We are not aware of any claims of infringement upon or challenges to our right to use any of our brand names or trademarks in the United States.
Nevertheless, we cannot be certain that the actions we have taken to establish and protect our trademarks will be adequate to prevent imitation of our
merchandise by others or to prevent others from seeking to block sales of our merchandise as a violation of the trademarks or proprietary rights of others.
Although we cannot currently estimate the likelihood of success of any such lawsuit or ultimate resolution of such a conflict, such a controversy could have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. If disputes arise in the future, we may not be able to successfully resolve these
types of conflicts to our satisfaction.
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We are currently in the process of registering our trademarks in several foreign countries to seek protection outside the United States. However, international
protection of our brand image and the use of these marks may be unavailable or could be limited. Also, other entities may have rights to trademarks that
contain portions of our marks or may have registered similar or competing marks for merchandise in foreign countries in which our vendors source our
merchandise. There may also be other prior registrations of trademarks identical or similar to our trademarks in other foreign countries of which we are not
aware. Accordingly, it may be possible for others to prevent the manufacture of our branded goods in certain foreign countries or the sale or exportation of
our branded goods from certain foreign countries to the United States. If we were unable to reach a licensing arrangement with these parties, our vendors may
be unable to manufacture our merchandise in those countries. Our inability to register our trademarks or purchase or license the right to use our trademarks or
logos in these jurisdictions could limit our ability to obtain supplies from less costly markets or penetrate new markets should our business plan change to
include selling our merchandise in those foreign jurisdictions.
Litigation may be necessary to protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights or to enforce these rights. Any litigation or claims brought by us
could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
We may be subject to liability and other risks if we, our vendors or the manufacturers of our merchandise infringe upon the trademarks or other
intellectual property rights of third parties, including the risk that we could acquire merchandise from our vendors without the full right to sell it.
We purchase merchandise that may be subject to design copyrights, design patents or otherwise may incorporate protected intellectual property. While we are
not involved in the manufacture of any of the merchandise we purchase from our vendors for sale to our customers, we may be subject to liability if our
vendors or the manufacturers of our merchandise infringe upon the trademarks or other intellectual property rights of third parties. We do not independently
investigate whether our vendors or the manufacturers with whom they do business legally hold intellectual property rights to the merchandise we purchase.
Third parties may bring legal claims, or threaten to bring legal claims, against us that their intellectual property rights are being infringed or violated by our
use of intellectual property. Litigation or threatened litigation could be costly and distract our senior management from operating our business. If we were to
be found liable for any such infringement, we could be required to pay substantial damages and could be subject to injunctions preventing further
infringement. Any payments we are required to make and any injunctions with which we are required to comply as a result of infringement claims could be
costly and thereby adversely affect our financial results.
If a third party claims to have licensing rights with respect to merchandise we purchased from a vendor, or if we acquire unlicensed merchandise, we may be
obligated to remove this merchandise from our boutiques, incur costs associated with this removal if the distributor or vendor is unwilling or unable to
reimburse us and be subject to liability under various civil and criminal causes of action, including actions to recover unpaid royalties and other damages
and injunctions. Additionally, we will be required to purchase new merchandise to replace any we remove.
We rely upon independent third-party transportation providers for substantially all of our merchandise shipments.
We currently rely upon independent third-party transportation providers for substantially all of our merchandise shipments, including shipments to all of our
boutiques and our direct customers. Our use of outside delivery services for shipments is subject to risks, including increases in fuel prices, which would
increase our shipping costs, and employee strikes and inclement weather, which may impact a shipper’s ability to provide delivery services that adequately
meet our shipping needs. If we change shipping companies, we could face logistical difficulties that could adversely impact deliveries and we would incur
costs and expend resources in connection with such change. Moreover, we may not be able to obtain terms as favorable as those received from the
independent third-party transportation providers we currently use, which would increase our costs.
Disruptions in transportation, including disruptions at shipping ports through which our merchandise are imported, could prevent us from timely
distribution and delivery of merchandise, which could reduce our net sales and operating margin.
From time to time, shipping ports experience capacity constraints, labor strikes, work stoppages or other disruptions that may delay the delivery of imported
products. A lengthy contract dispute may lead to protracted delays in the movement of our merchandise, which could further delay the delivery of
merchandise to our boutiques and impact net sales and operating margin. Other conditions outside of our control, such as adverse weather conditions or acts
of terrorism, could significantly disrupt operations at shipping ports or otherwise impact transportation of the imported merchandise we sell.
Future disruptions in transportation services or at a shipping port at which our merchandise are received may result in delays in the transportation of such
merchandise to our distribution center and may ultimately delay the distribution to our boutiques resulting in reduced net sales and / or profitability.
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Our ability to source our merchandise efficiently and profitably could be hurt if new trade restrictions are imposed, existing trade restrictions become more
burdensome, or the countries where our merchandise are sourced experience political instability.
We currently purchase all of our inventory from domestic vendors, who source our merchandise both domestically and internationally. We believe most of
the merchandise sourced by our vendors was produced outside the United States. These vendors, to the extent they obtain merchandise from outside of the
United States, are subject to trade restrictions, including tariffs, safeguards or quotas, changes to which could increase the cost or reduce the supply of
merchandise available to us. Under the World Trade Organization Agreement, effective January 1, 2005, the United States and other World Trade
Organization member countries removed quotas on goods from World Trade Organization members, which in certain instances we believe afford our vendors
greater flexibility in importing textile and apparel products from World Trade Organization countries from which they source our merchandise. However, as
the removal of quotas resulted in an import surge from China, the United States imposed safeguard quotas on a number of categories of goods and apparel
from China, and may impose additional quotas in the future. These and other trade restrictions could have a significant impact on our vendors’ sourcing
patterns in the future. The extent of this impact, if any, and the possible effect on our purchasing patterns and costs, cannot be determined at this time. We
cannot predict whether any of the countries in which our vendors’ merchandise is currently manufactured or may be manufactured in the future will be
subject to additional trade restrictions imposed by the United States or foreign governments, nor can we predict the likelihood, type or effect of any
restrictions. Trade restrictions, including increased tariffs or quotas, embargoes, safeguards and customs restrictions against items we offer in our boutiques, as
well as United States or foreign labor strikes, work stoppages or boycotts, could increase the cost or reduce the supply of merchandise to our vendors, and we
would expect the costs to be passed along in increased prices to us, which could hurt our profitability.
Additionally, political instability or acts of terrorism, significant fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies and restrictions on the
transfer of funds between the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions, any of which if they effect the countries where our merchandise are sourced, could adversely
affect our merchandise flow and, consequently, cause our sales to decline.
Increases in the minimum wage could have an adverse effect on our financial results.
From time to time, legislative proposals are made to increase the federal minimum wage in the United States, as well as the minimum wage in a number of
individual states and municipalities. Legislation to increase the minimum wage has been approved or is being contemplated in some states in which we
operate. Base wage rates for many of our employees are at or slightly above the minimum wage. As federal or state minimum wage rates increase, we may need
to increase not only the wage rates of our minimum wage employees, but also the wages paid to our other hourly employees as well. Any increase in the cost
of our labor could have an adverse effect on our operating costs, financial condition and results of operations.
Our inability to comply with the continued listing requirements of the Nasdaq Stock Market could result in our common stock being delisted, which could
adversely affect the market price and liquidity of our securities and could have other adverse effects.
On February 1, 2019, we received a letter from the Listing Qualifications staff of Nasdaq indicating that, based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s
common stock for the last 30 consecutive business days, the Company no longer meets the requirement of the Nasdaq Global Select Market to maintain a
minimum bid price of $1 per share, as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1).
In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), we have been provided a period of 180 calendar days, or until July 31, 2019, in which to regain
compliance. In order to regain compliance with the minimum bid price requirement, the closing bid price of our common stock must be at least $1 per share
for a minimum of ten consecutive business days during this 180-day period. In the event that we do not regain compliance within this 180-day period, we
may be eligible to transfer to the Nasdaq Capital Market and seek an additional compliance period of 180 calendar days if we (i) meet the continued listing
requirement for market value of publicly held shares and all other initial listing standards for the Nasdaq Capital Market, with the exception of the bid price
requirement, and (ii) provide written notice to Nasdaq of our intent to cure the deficiency during this second compliance period, including by effecting a
reverse stock split, if necessary. However, if it appears to the Nasdaq staff that we will not be able to cure the deficiency, or if we are otherwise not eligible,
Nasdaq will provide notice to us that we will not be eligible for the additional compliance period and our common stock will be subject to delisting. We
would then be entitled to appeal the determination to a Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Panel and request a hearing. We are considering our available options
to regain compliance, including whether to effect a reverse stock split. There can be no assurance that we will be able to regain compliance with the minimum
bid price requirement or maintain compliance with the other Nasdaq listing requirements. If we do not regain compliance with the Nasdaq continuing listing
requirements, our common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq Global Select Market (or Nasdaq Capital Market, if applicable) and it could be more
difficult to buy or sell our securities and to obtain accurate quotations, and the price of our common stock could suffer a material decline. In addition, a
delisting would impair our ability to raise capital through the public markets, could deter broker-dealers from making a market in or otherwise seeking or
generating interest in our securities and might deter certain institutions and persons from investing in our securities at all.
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Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could delay and discourage takeover attempts that stockholders
may consider to be favorable.
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions that make it difficult for our stockholders to
change the composition of our board of directors, preventing them from changing the composition of management. The same provisions may discourage,
delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that our stockholders may consider favorable. These provisions, among other things:
·

establish a staggered, or classified, board of directors so that not all members of our board of directors are elected at one time;

·

prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors;

·

authorize the issuance by our board of directors of “blank check” preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and the shares of which may
be issued without stockholder approval, and which may include super-majority voting, special approval, dividend or other rights or preferences
superior to the rights of the holders of common stock;

·

limit the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders;

·

prohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders; and

·

establish advance notice requirements for stockholder nominations for elections to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted
upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

Further, if we effect a reverse stock split in order to regain compliance with the Nasdaq’s minimum bid price requirement discussed above without also
correspondingly reducing the number of authorized but unissued shares of our common stock, the increased number of authorized but unissued shares of our
common stock may make any effort towards a change of control more difficult. These anti-takeover provisions and other provisions under Delaware law
could substantially impede the ability of our common stockholders to benefit from a change in control and, as a result, could materially adversely affect the
market price of our common stock and your ability to realize any potential change-in-control premium.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
We do not own any real property, but rather lease our properties. Our corporate headquarters, warehouse and distribution center are located in an
approximately 218,000 square foot facility in Houston, Texas. The lease will expire on April 30, 2020 and we have options to renew the lease for an
additional period of up to ten years. We believe that our current facility will be sufficient to support our business operations for several years.
As of February 2, 2019, we had 727 boutiques in 47 states and the District of Columbia. In total we have approximately 1,055,000 gross square feet across all
of our boutiques. Our boutiques are leased from third parties with initial lease terms of five to ten years and many of our lease agreements have additional
five-year renewal options. A majority of our leases have early termination clauses, which permit the lease to be terminated by us if certain sales levels are not
met in specific periods or if a shopping center does not meet specified occupancy standards. In addition to fixed minimum lease payments, most of our
boutique leases provide for additional rental payments based on a percentage of sales if sales at the respective boutiques exceed specified levels. A majority
of our leases also provide for additional payments associated with common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance. Many of our lease agreements
have defined escalating rent provisions over the initial term and extensions.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For information regarding legal proceedings involving us, please refer to Note 10 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “FRAN.” As of April 15, 2019, there were approximately 78 holders of
record of our common stock. The number of holders of record is based upon the actual number of holders registered at such date and does not include holders
of shares in “street name” or persons, partnerships, associates, corporations or other entities identified in security position listing maintained by depositories.
Performance Graph
The following graph compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative stockholder return on our common stock with the cumulative total return for
the Nasdaq Global Select Market Index and the Nasdaq Retail Trade Index. The graph assumes $100 was invested at the close of market on February 1, 2014
in the stock of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, the Nasdaq Global Stock Market, and the Nasdaq Retail Trade Stocks. It also assumes that all dividends are
reinvested.

Francesca's Holdings Corporation
Nasdaq Global Select Market Index
Nasdaq Retail Trade Index

February 1,
2014
$
100.00
$
100.00
$
100.00

January 31,
2015
$
83.47
$
113.40
$
121.12

January 30,
2016
$
95.95
$
113.55
$
121.90

January 28,
2017
$
89.37
$
139.24
$
128.30

February 3,
2018
$
29.05
$
178.56
$
139.10

February 2,
2019
$
4.43
$
181.06
$
146.49

The foregoing graph is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of future performance.
The foregoing performance graph shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under
that section and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, or the Exchange Act.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected consolidated financial data for each of the years ended February 2, 2019, February 3, 2018 and January 28, 2017, and the selected
consolidated balance sheet data as of February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, which are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected consolidated financial data for the year ended January 30, 2016 and January 31, 2015
and the consolidated balance sheet data as of January 28, 2017, January 30, 2016, and January 31, 2015 have been derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements, which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
28

We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The reporting
periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report contain 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2018, which ended on
February 2, 2019, 53 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018, and 52 of weeks of operations in fiscal year 2016, which
ended on January 28, 2017. Our fiscal year 2015 included 52 weeks of operations which ended on January 30, 2016 and our fiscal year 2014 included 52
weeks of operations which ended on January 31, 2015. The historical results presented below are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for
any future period. You should read the selected consolidated financial and operating data for the periods presented in conjunction with “Risk Factors”,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes,
which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 2,
February 3,
January 28,
January 30,
January 31,
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
(in thousands, except per share data, percentages and operating data)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Net sales
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs
Gross profit
Selling, general, and administrative expense(1)
Asset impairment charges(1)
(Loss) income from operations
Interest expense
Other income (expense)
(Loss) income before income tax expense
Income tax expense(2)
Net (loss) income
Basic (loss) earnings per common share (3)
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share(3)

$

$

$

428,115
265,119
162,996
176,379
20,122
(33,505)
(426)
483
(33,448)
7,493
(40,941 )

$
$

(1.18)
(1.18)

$
$

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic shares
Diluted shares
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Total current assets
Total assets
Long-term debt
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity
Operating data:
Comparable sales change for period (4)
Number of boutiques open at end of period
Net sales per average square foot for period (5)
Average square feet per boutique at the end of the period (6)
Total approximate gross square feet at end of period

$

34,805
34,805
$
$
$
$
$

$

77,247
153,042
10,000
79,652
73,390

471,678
264,915
206,763
176,543
258
29,962
(452)
346
29,856
14,295
15,561
0.43
0.43

$

$
$
$

36,168
36,300
$
$
$
$
$

(14)%
727
404
$
1,452
1,055,000

84,503
185,240
–
70,792
114,448

487,188
258,561
228,627
160,561
141
67,925
(464)
147
67,608
25,607
42,001
1.09
1.09

$

$
$
$

38,429
38,551
$
$
$
$
$

(11)%
721
482
$
1,420
1,024,000

100,075
189,593
–
73,058
116,535

439,377
229,673
209,704
146,597
790
62,317
(457)
(151 )
61,709
23,557
38,152
0.91
0.91

$

$
$
$

42,013
42,117
$
$
$
$
$

2%
671
545
$
1,391
933,000

110,769
193,577
–
67,185
126,392

377,497
199,919
177,578
122,334
2,470
52,774
(623)
88
52,239
20,131
32,108
0.76
0.76
42,259
42,380

$
$
$
$
$

3%
616
543
$
1,368
843,000

85,899
165,545
–
56,331
109,214

(5)%
539
545
1,350
728,000

(1) Asset impairment charges, which were previously included as part of selling, general and administrative expenses, are now presented as a separate line
item. Accordingly, prior year presentation has been updated to conform to such presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on previously report
financial results. See Note 4, Asset Impairment Charges, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for additional information.
(2) Our income tax expense for fiscal year 2018 included a $17.1 million non-cash valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax asset. A valuation
allowance has been recorded in fiscal year 2018 because we concluded that it is more likely than not that certain deferred tax assets will not be realized.
See Note 5, Income Taxes, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.
(3) See Note 2, (Loss) Earnings Per Share, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for an
explanation of per share calculations.
(4) A boutique is included in comparable sales on the first day of the fifteenth full month following the boutique’s opening. If a boutique is closed for four
or more days within a given fiscal week for any reason, we exclude sales from that boutique from comparable sales for that full fiscal week. If a boutique
is permanently closed, we exclude sales from that boutique from comparable sales on the first day of the fiscal month that it did not register full month of
sales. Comparable sales include our ecommerce sales and exclude gift card breakage income.
(5) Net sales per average square foot for the period is calculated by dividing net sales for the period by the average square feet during the period. For
purposes of providing a net sales per square foot measure, we use average square feet during the period as opposed to total gross square feet at the end of
the period. Average square feet is calculated as (a) the sum of total gross square feet at the beginning of the period and total gross square feet at the end of
each fiscal quarter within the period, divided by (b) the number of fiscal quarters within the period plus one (which, for a fiscal year, is five). There may
be variations in the way in which some of our competitors and other retailers calculate sales per square foot or similarly titled measures. As a result,
average total square feet and net sales per average square foot for the period may not be comparable to similar data made available by other retailers.
(6) Average square feet per boutique is calculated by dividing total gross square feet at the end of the period by the number of boutiques open at the end of
the period.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with “Selected Consolidated Financial
and Operating Data” and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes and other financial information and operating data, which are
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis, including information with
respect to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review the “Risk
Factors” and “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following
discussion and analysis.
We operate on a fiscal calendar which, in a given fiscal year, consists of a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31st. The
reporting periods contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report contain 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2018,
which ended on February 2, 2019, 53 weeks of operations in fiscal year 2017, which ended on February 3, 2018, and 52 weeks of operations in fiscal year
2016, which ended on January 28, 2017. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period.
Overview
francesca’s® is a specialty retailer which operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and personalized shopping experience.
The merchandise assortment is diverse and balance mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts. At February 2, 2019, francesca’s® operated 727 boutiques
in 47 states and the District of Columbia and also served its customers through www.francescas.com, its ecommerce website.
In assessing the performance of our business, we consider a variety of performance and financial measures. The key measures for determining how our
business is performing are net sales, comparable sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs, selling, general and administrative expenses and income from
operations.
Recent Developments
We have developed a turnaround plan to stabilize and then grow our business. This plan includes strategies aimed at enhancing our financial performance,
which has declined primarily as a result of our continued comparable sales declines. See above under Item 1. Business, “Our Growth Strategy” for additional
information. In fiscal year 2018, comparable sales declined 14% and in fiscal year 2017 comparable sales declined 11%. In each case, we believe the declines
were primarily the result of our inability to successfully implement merchandise planning, buying and promotional policies to leverage our strength of
delivering on-trend merchandise at a compelling value, causing declines in both conversion rates and boutique traffic. Additionally, the growth in our
expense structure has outpaced our revenues. As a result, our ability to generate cash from operations was adversely impacted in fiscal year 2018 and we
ended the year with $20.1 million in cash and cash equivalents and approximately $10.0 million in borrowings under our Asset Based Revolving Credit
Facility (as defined below). Subsequent to fiscal year 2018, we borrowed an additional $5.0 million under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility while
waiting for the receipt of an income tax refund from the IRS. As of May 2, 2019, our estimated cash and cash equivalents were approximately $13.0 million
which included the receipt of $8.5 million income tax refund from the IRS we received on April 22, 2019. Additionally, the estimated cash balance as of May
2, 2019 reflects a $5.0 million payment on our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility bringing the outstanding balance back down to $10.0 million and our
estimated additional availability to $14.6 million as of that date. We also incurred an operating loss of $33.5 million in fiscal 2018 as compared to operating
income of $30.0 million in fiscal 2017. Our operating loss for fiscal year 2018 includes a non-cash asset impairment charge, a full valuation allowance on our
net deferred tax assets, professional fees associated with the Company’s turnaround plan and evaluation of strategic and financial alternatives discussed
below and reversal of stock-based compensation in connection with our Chief Executive Officer’s (“CEO”) resignation. See below, “Results of Operations,”
for additional information.
In addition, as previously disclosed, in January 2019, our Board of Directors initiated a review of our strategic and financial alternatives to maximize value.
We retained Rothschild & Co and other advisors to assist in the review of these alternatives. There can be no assurance that the exploration of strategic and
financial alternatives will result in any transaction or other result that enhances value. Also as previously disclosed, we have not set a timetable for the
completion of the review process, and we do not intend to comment on the process unless a specific transaction or other alternative is approved by our Board
of Directors, the process is concluded, or it is otherwise determined that further disclosure is appropriate or required by law.
In addition, in February 2019, Mr. Steve Lawrence resigned from his position as our President and CEO and Mr. Michael Prendergast of Alvarez & Marsal was
appointed as our Interim CEO. Also in February 2019, our Senior Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer departed the Company. We are in the
beginning stages of a formal search for a permanent CEO and either a general merchandising manager or a Chief Merchandising Officer, but are confident that
we currently have an experienced interim leadership team in place to execute on our turnaround plan.
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We recorded a non-cash asset impairment charge of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018, which is primarily related to 153 underperforming boutiques for which
the remaining, or a portion of the remaining, net book value of their assets are no longer expected to be recoverable. See Note 4, Asset Impairment Charges, to
our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information. Additionally, this asset impairment
charge included a $4.9 million charge associated with the write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that are no longer expected to be used as a
result of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods. See above under Item 1. Business, “Our Sales Channels” for additional
information.
Our income tax expense for fiscal year 2018 included a $17.1 million non-cash valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax asset. A valuation
allowance has been recorded in fiscal year 2018 because we concluded that it is more likely than not that certain deferred tax assets will not be realized. See
Note 5, Income Taxes, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.
Boutique Count
The following table summarizes the number of boutiques open at the beginning and end of periods and the number of boutiques remodeled for the periods
indicated.

February 2, 2019
721
32
(26 )
727
81

Number of boutiques open at the beginning of period
Boutiques added
Boutiques closed
Number of boutiques open at the end of period
Number of boutiques remodeled

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2018
671
60
(10 )
721
17

January 28, 2017
616
64
(9 )
671
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Results of Operations
Fiscal Year 2018 Compared to Fiscal Year 2017

Net sales
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Asset impairment charges (2)
(Loss) income from operations
Interest expense
Other income
(Loss) income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net (loss) income

Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, 2019
February 3, 2018
As a %
As a %
of Net
of Net
In
In Dollars
Sales(1)
Dollars
Sales (1)
In Dollars
(in thousands, except percentages)
$ 428,115
100.0% $ 471,678
100.0% $ (43,563)
265,119
61.9 %
264,915
56.2 %
204
162,996
38.1%
206,763
43.8%
(43,767)
176,379
41.2%
176,543
37.4%
(164)
20,122
4.7 %
258
0.1 %
19,864
(33,505)
(7.8)%
29,962
6.4%
(63,467)
(426)
(0.1)%
(452)
(0.1)%
(26)
483
0.1 %
346
0.1 %
137
(33,448)
(7.8)%
29,856
6.3%
(63,304)
7,493
1.8 %
14,295
3.0 %
(6,802 )
$ (40,941 )
(9.6 )% $ 15,561
3.3 %
(56,502 )

Variance
Basis
Points (1)

%
(9)%
0%
(21)%
0%
* (3)
* (3)
(6)%
40 %
* (3)
* (3)
* (3)

580
(580)
380
* (3)
* (3)
* (3)
* (3)
* (3)

(1) Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding.
(2) Asset impairment charges, which were previously included as part of selling, general and administrative expenses, are now presented as a separate line
item. Accordingly, prior year presentation has been updated to conform to such presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on previously report
financial results. See Note 4, Asset Impairment Charges, to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for additional information.
(3) Not meaningful.
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Net Sales
Net sales decreased 9%, or $43.6 million, to $428.1 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to $471.7 million in fiscal year 2017 due to a 14% decrease in
comparable sales following an 11% decrease in the prior year. Additionally, fiscal 2017 included approximately $5.0 million of sales for the 53 rd week. The
decrease in comparable sales was due to declines in both boutique traffic and conversion rate. There were 698 comparable boutiques and 29 non-comparable
boutiques open at February 2, 2019, compared to 657 and 64, respectively, at February 3, 2018.
Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs was flat at approximately $265.0 million in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. Cost of goods sold decreased by $10.0
million in fiscal year 2018 due to a decrease in sales volume and marked out-of-stock charges but was partially offset by higher ecommerce shipping
expenses as a result of higher ecommerce sales penetration. Occupancy costs increased by $10.2 million in fiscal year 2018 principally due to the 32 new
boutiques opened partially offset by 26 boutiques closed during the year; 12 of which were closed during the last week of the fiscal year. Additionally, we
saw increases in average rent and related expenses due to increased penetration of boutiques in high traffic centers, depreciation due to increased cost of new
boutiques and remodels and costs associated with boutique remodels.
As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs increased to 61.9% in fiscal year 2018 from 56.2% in fiscal year 2017, an unfavorable
variance of 580 basis points. This unfavorable variance was driven by 440 basis points deleveraging of occupancy costs as a result of lower sales as well as
the increase in occupancy costs discussed above. Additionally, merchandise margins were lower by 140 basis points in fiscal year 2018 as compared to the
prior year due to increased markdowns and higher average unit costs but was partially offset by lower marked-out-of-stock charges and inventory reserves.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses were flat at approximately $176.0 million in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. The $2.7 million increase in marketing,
professional fees and depreciation was offset by a decrease of $2.4 million in selling expenses due to labor efficiencies at the boutique level and the $0.8
million reversal of previously awarded stock-based compensation associated with the resignation of our prior CEO. Part of the increase in professional fees
was due to $1.5 million in consulting expenses incurred associated with our turnaround plan and evaluation of strategic and financial alternatives that
commenced in January 2019.
As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 41.2% in fiscal year 2018 from 37.4% in fiscal year 2017 primarily due
to deleveraging of expenses resulting from lower sales.
Asset Impairment Charges
We recognized asset impairment charges of $20.1 million in fiscal year 2018 mostly related to 153 underperforming boutiques for which the remaining, or a
portion of the remaining, net book value of their respective assets are no longer expected to be recoverable. Additionally, we wrote off $4.9 million in fiscal
year 2018 of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that are no longer intended to be used as a result of postponing new boutique openings and remodels in
future periods. See above under “Recent Developments” for additional information.
Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense decreased to $7.5 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to $14.3 million in fiscal year 2017. We did not incur an income tax benefit
associated with our net loss in fiscal year 2018 primarily due to the $17.1 million valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax assets. See above
under “Recent Developments” for additional information.
Our effective tax rate was 22.4% and 47.9% in fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. The significant change in our effective tax rate was due to the $17.1
million valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax asset in fiscal year 2018 and the lower corporate income tax rate under the Tax Cuts and Jobs
Act (“Tax Act”) enacted in December 2017. This change was partially offset by the $3.3 million non-cash expense recognized in fiscal year 2017 as a result
of the remeasurement of our net deferred tax assets using the lower corporate income tax rate under the Tax Act. During fiscal year 2018, we completed the
analysis of the impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the previously recorded provisional amount. See Note 5,
“Income Taxes,” to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.
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Fiscal Year 2017 Compared to Fiscal Year 2016

Net sales
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2018
January 28, 2017
As a %
As a %
of Net
of Net
In Dollars
Sales(1)
In Dollars
Sales (1)
In Dollars
(in thousands, except percentages)
$ 471,678
100.0% $ 487,188
100.0% $ (15,510)
264,915
56.2 %
258,561
53.1 %
6,354
206,763
43.8%
228,627
46.9%
(21,864)

(2)

Asset impairment charges(2)
Income from operations
Interest expense
Other income
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income

$

176,543
258
29,962
(452)
346
29,856
14,295
15,561

37.4%
0.1 %
6.4%
(0.1)%
0.1 %
6.3%
3.0 %
3.3 % $

160,561
141
67,925
(464)
147
67,608
25,607
42,001

33.0%
0.0 %
13.9%
(0.1)%
0.0 %
13.9%
5.3 %
8.6 % $

15,982
117
(37,963)
12
199
(37,752)
(11,312 )
(26,440 )

Variance
Basis
Points (1)

%
(3)%
2%
(10)%

310
(310)

10%
83 %
(56)%
3%
135 %
(56)%
(44 )%
(63 )%

440
10
(750)
10
(760)
(230 )
(530 )

(1) Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding.
(2) Asset impairment charges, which were previously included as part of selling, general and administrative expenses, are now presented as a separate line
item. Accordingly, prior year presentation has been updated to conform to such presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on previously report
financial results. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.
Net Sales
Net sales decreased 3%, or $15.5 million, to $471.7 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to $487.2 million in fiscal year 2016. This decrease was due to an
11% decrease in comparable sales compared to a 2% increase in the prior year. The decrease in comparable sales was primarily due the decline in boutique
conversion rate as our merchandise did not resonate with our guests, particularly in the back half of the year. Additionally, Hurricanes Harvey and Irma
adversely impacted comparable sales by approximately 105 basis points, mostly as a result of the supply chain disruption we experienced at our corporate
offices located in Houston, Texas. This decrease was partially offset by 50 net new boutiques opened since the comparable prior year period and sales during
the 53 rd week of fiscal year 2017. There were 657 comparable boutiques and 64 non-comparable boutiques open at February 3, 2018 compared to 604 and
67, respectively, at January 28, 2017.
Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs increased 2%, or $6.4 million, to $264.9 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to $258.6 million in fiscal year 2016.
Cost of goods sold decreased by $2.0 million due to lower marked out-of-stock activity partially offset by higher ecommerce shipping costs as a result of the
higher ecommerce sales penetration. Occupancy costs increased by $8.3 million principally due to the increase in the number of boutiques in operation
during fiscal year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016.
As a percentage of net sales, cost of goods sold and occupancy costs increased to 56.2% in fiscal year 2017 from 53.1% in fiscal year 2016, an unfavorable
variance of 310 basis points. This unfavorable variance was due to a 230 basis points deleveraging of occupancy costs as well as 80 basis points decrease in
merchandise margin. The lower merchandise margin was driven by increased markdowns in order to sell through slow-moving merchandise partially offset by
lower marked-out-of-stock charges as we benefitted from our in-season clearance strategy.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 10%, or $16.0 million, to $176.5 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to $160.6 million in fiscal year
2016. This increase was primarily due to an $11.1 million increase in boutique and corporate payroll to support our larger boutique base and ecommerce
operations, a $2.1 million increase in software costs associated with our continuing investments in technology and infrastructure, $2.0 million prior year net
benefit associated with the resignation of our prior CEO and the related search process, a $1.9 million increase in marketing expenses due to new marketing
initiatives, and a $1.4 million increase in website, legal and other professional fees. These increases were partially offset by a $5.0 million decrease in shortand long-term performance-based incentive expenses as the required performance metrics were not achieved or are not expected to be achieved.
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As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 37.4% in fiscal year 2017 from 33.0% in fiscal year 2016, primarily due
to the increase in boutique, technology and infrastructure investments as well as deleveraging of expenses as a result of lower sales.
Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense decreased to $14.3 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to $25.6 million in fiscal year 2016 due to the decrease in taxable income. Our
effective tax rate was 47.9% and 37.9% in fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively. The increase in our effective tax rate was due to a $3.3 million non-cash
expense as a result of the remeasurement of our net deferred tax assets using the lower corporate income tax rate under the Tax Act enacted in December 2017.
See Note 5, “Income Taxes,” to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information.
Sales by Merchandise Category
The following table presents merchandise by category, in dollars and as a percentage of total sales, for the periods indicated.

February 2, 2019
As a %
In
of Net
Dollars
Sales(1)
Apparel
Jewelry
Accessories
Gifts
Other(2)

$

$

200,736
104,714
69,219
50,311
3,135
428,115

46.9%
24.5%
16.2%
11.8%
0.7 %
100.0 %

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2018
As a %
In
of Net
Dollars
Sales(1)
(in thousands, except percentages)
$
235,048
49.8% $
104,638
22.2%
69,004
14.6%
59,286
12.6%
3,702
0.8 %
$
471,678
100.0 % $

January 28, 2017
As a %
In
of Net
Dollars
Sales(1)
244,156
109,642
69,900
62,008
1,482
487,188

50.1%
22.5%
14.4%
12.7%
0.3 %
100.0 %

(1) Percentage totals or differences in the above table may not equal the sum or difference of the components due to rounding
(2) Includes gift card breakage income, shipping revenue and change in return reserve.
Seasonality
Our business is seasonal in nature and demand is generally the highest in the fourth fiscal quarter due to the year-end holiday season and lowest in the first
fiscal quarter. In addition, to prepare for these periods, we must order and keep in stock more merchandise than we carry during other parts of the year. We
expect inventory levels, along with an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses, generally to reach their highest levels in the fourth fiscal quarter
in anticipation of the increased net sales during this period. As a result of this seasonality and generally because of variation in consumer spending habits, we
experience fluctuations in net sales and working capital requirements during the year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations and borrowings under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility (see “Revolving Credit
Facility” below for more information). Additionally, on April 22, 2019, we received an income tax refund check of $8.5 million from the IRS. Our primary
cash needs are for funding normal working capital requirements, the operation of our existing boutiques and ecommerce business, the implementation of our
turnaround plan, and payments of interest and principal, if any, under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility. We may use cash or our Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility to issue letters of credit to support merchandise imports or for other corporate purposes. The most significant components of our
working capital are cash and cash equivalents, merchandise inventories, accounts payable and other current liabilities. Our working capital position benefits
from the fact that we generally collect cash from sales to customers the day of or, in the case of credit or debit card transactions, within several days of the
related sales and we typically have up to 45 days to pay our inventory vendors and up to 60 days to pay our other vendors.
On February 2, 2019, we had $20.1 million of cash and cash equivalents, $10.0 million of borrowings outstanding and $12.3 million of borrowing base
availability under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility. Subsequent to fiscal year 2018, we borrowed an additional $5.0 million under our Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility while waiting for the receipt of an income tax refund from the IRS. We were in compliance with all covenants under our Asset
Based Revolving Credit Facility as of February 2, 2019. As of May 2, 2019, our estimated cash and cash equivalents were approximately $13.0 million which
included the receipt of $8.5 million income tax refund from the IRS we received on April 22, 2019. Additionally, the estimated cash balance as of May 2,
2019 reflects a $5.0 million payment on our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility bringing the outstanding balance back down to $10.0 million and our
estimated additional availability to $14.6 million as of that date. Additionally, we expect to be in compliance with all our covenants under our Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility for at least the next twelve months.
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We expect that our cash flow from operations, the $8.5 million IRS tax refund check received on April 22, 2019 disclosed above and along with borrowings
under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility, will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures, our working capital requirements and our principal and
interest requirements, if any, under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility for at least the next twelve months.
Cash Flow
A summary of our operating, investing and financing activities are shown in the following table.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,
January 28,
2018
2017
(in thousands)
9,533 $
24,825 $
72,171
(26,199)
(26,778)
(21,844)
5,438
(19,918 )
(53,349 )
(11,228 ) $
(21,871 ) $
(3,022 )

February 2,
2019
Provided by operating activities
Used in investing activities
Provided by (used) in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

$

$

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities consist primarily of net loss or income adjusted for non-cash items (including depreciation and amortization, asset
impairment charges, stock-based compensation and deferred taxes), the effect of working capital changes and tenant allowances received from landlords.
Cash provided by operating activities decreased $15.3 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 primarily due to a decrease in net income to a
net loss as well as lower tenant allowances received from landlords partially offset by lower income tax payments and timing of payments for inventory
purchases.
Cash provided by operating activities decreased $47.3 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016 primarily due to a decrease in net income and
higher income tax payments, partially offset by timing of payments for inventory purchases and other payables, including software subscription, supplies,
legal and professional fees.
Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities consist primarily of capital expenditures for new boutiques, remodels, improvements to existing boutiques as well as
investment in information technology and our distribution facility.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, February 3, January 28,
2019
2018
2017
(in thousands)
Capital expenditures for:
New boutiques
Remodels
Existing boutiques
Technology
Corporate and distribution

$

$

8,357 $
10,537
3,869
2,535
901
26,199 $

19,280 $
2,189
3,125
1,826
358
26,778 $

13,370
3,651
24
4,067
740
21,852

Our total capital expenditures for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $26.2 million, $26.8 million and $21.9 million, respectively. A majority of our
spending in fiscal year 2018 were invested in boutique remodels at $10.5 million and in new boutique openings at $19.3 million and $13.4 million in fiscal
years 2017 and 2016, respectively. Spending for new boutiques include amounts associated with boutiques that will open in the subsequent fiscal year.
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Fiscal Year Ended
February 2,
February 3,
January 28,
2019
2018
2017
(in thousands, except boutique count)
New boutiques:
Number of new boutiques opened
Average cost per new boutique
Average tenant allowance per new boutique
Tenant allowance collected

$
$
$

32
320
44
3,400

$
$
$

60
293
57
3,100

$
$
$

64
235
77
3,700

Remodels:
Number of boutiques remodeled
Average cost per remodeled boutique

$

81
149

$

17
129

$

32
114

The increase in the average cost of new boutiques during fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 was due to higher costs of furniture and fixtures as a
result of implementing our new boutique design piloted in our existing boutiques last year. Additionally, the average boutique build-out costs were higher in
fiscal years 2018 and 2017 compared to prior years due to opening larger boutiques, particularly in outlet locations. The average size of boutiques opened in
fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 were 2,033 square feet, 1,714 square feet and 1,597 square feet, respectively. The decrease in average tenant allowance in
each year was principally due to our continued focus in lowering rental rates. Tenant allowances are amortized as a reduction in rent expense over the term of
the lease. The average collection period for these allowances is approximately six months after boutique opening. As a result, we funded the cost of new
boutiques and remodels with cash flow from operations, tenant allowances from our landlords, or borrowings under our revolving credit facility, as needed.
In fiscal year 2018, we commenced a boutique refresh program and remodeled 81 high volume existing boutiques. We view this remodel program as an
important investment to continually enhance the differentiated customer shopping experience we strive to achieve. The increase in the average cost of
remodels in each year was principally due to more extensive upgrade or enhancement performed at each location.
The remaining capital expenditures in each of fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 were used for investments in existing boutiques, information technology and
our corporate offices and for distribution facility enhancements. Our spending for existing boutiques totaled $3.9 million, $3.1 million and less than $0.1
million in fiscal year 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which was mostly spent in relocating existing boutiques. Our information technology investments
in fiscal year 2016 were the highest due to the implementation of a new point-of-sale system and customer relationship managements system.
Management anticipates that capital expenditures in fiscal year 2019 will be approximately $6.0 million. The majority of this amount will be spent on
funding the opening of four new boutiques and investments in existing boutiques.
Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities consist principally of borrowings and payments under our revolving credit facilities, if any, repurchases of common
stock as well as proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the related tax consequence.
Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2018 was $5.4 million which consisted of $10.0 million in borrowings under our Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility partially offset by $4.0 million repurchases of our common stock and $0.5 million payment of debt issuance costs. Net cash used in
financing activities in fiscal years 2017 and 2016 were $19.9 million and $53.3 million, respectively, which mainly consisted of repurchases of our common
stock.
Revolving Credit Facility
Prior Revolving Credit Facility
On August 30, 2013, Francesca’s Collections, Inc., as borrower, and its parent company, Francesca’s LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”) with Royal Bank of Canada, as
Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, and the lenders party thereto. The credit facility provided capacity of $75.0 million (including up to
$10.0 million for letters of credit) and was scheduled to mature on August 30, 2018. On May 25, 2018, concurrent with entering into the Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility described below, the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was terminated.
36

Asset Based Revolving Credit Agreement
On May 25, 2018, Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Holdings”), as a guarantor, certain of its subsidiaries, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), and certain of
its subsidiaries as guarantors (together with the Company and the Borrowers, the “Loan Parties”), entered into an asset based revolving credit agreement
(“Credit Agreement”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the lenders party thereto. The Credit Agreement provides for revolving
commitments of $50.0 million (including up to $10.0 million for letters of credit) and matures on May 25, 2023. Availability under the Credit Agreement is
subject to a customary borrowing base comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in the Credit Agreement);
and (b) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Credit Agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary reserves and
adjustments (as defined in the Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement also contains an increase option permitting the Borrowers, subject to certain
requirements, to arrange with lenders for additional revolving commitments for up to an aggregate of $25.0 million. On February 2, 2019, we had $10.0
million of borrowings outstanding and $12.3 million of borrowing base availability under the Credit Agreement. Additionally, there were no letters of credit
outstanding as of February 2, 2019. Subsequent to fiscal year 2018, we borrowed an additional $5.0 million under our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility
while waiting for the receipt of an income tax refund from the IRS. As of May 2, 2019, we had an outstanding balance of $10.0 million after a $50 million on
our outstanding borrowing and an estimated $14.6 million in additional availability under the Credit Agreement as of that date.
All obligations of each Loan Party under the Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the Company’s existing and
future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of
those obligations (as well as banking services obligations and any interest rate hedging or other swap agreements), are secured by substantially all of the
assets of the Company and each of the Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries. Additionally, the Credit
Agreement contains customary events of default and requires the Loan Parties to comply with certain financial covenants, including a restriction prohibiting
the Loan Parties from declaring or making dividend payments, except that Holdings may do so subject to the satisfaction of the Payment Conditions (as
defined in the Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement also requires that the auditor’s report on the Company’s financial statements for the previous fiscal
year does not contain a “going concern” or like qualification or exception and also requires the Loan Parties to maintain a minimum ratio of (i) EBITDAR (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) minus unfinanced capital expenditures (as defined in the Credit Agreement), to (ii) fixed charges of 1.00 to 1.00 during
periods when availability (as defined in the Credit Agreement) is less than $6.0 million (or has recently been less than $6.0 million as further specified in the
Credit Agreement) (such ratio, the “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio”). As of February 2, 2019, our borrowing availability was more than $6.0 million, resulting
in the elimination of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio requirement.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the option of the Borrowers, either (a) in the case of base
rate borrowings, a rate equal to the highest of (1) the prime rate of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., (2) the federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1.00%, and (3) LIBOR for
an interest period of one month plus 1.00% (subject to a 0.0% LIBOR floor), provided that that the interest rate for base rate borrowings (including the
addition of the applicable margin) shall be no less than 1.50% per annum, or (b) in the case of LIBOR borrowings, a rate equal to the LIBOR for the interest
period relevant to such borrowing subject to a 0.00% floor. The applicable margin for borrowings under the Credit Agreement ranges from -0.50% to 0.00%
per annum with respect to base rate borrowings and from 1.25% to 1.75% per annum with respect to LIBOR borrowings, in each case based upon the
achievement of specified levels of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. The Credit Agreement also requires the Borrowers to pay a commitment fee for the
unused portion of the revolving credit facility of 0.20% per annum.
The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations, subject to customary exceptions, on the ability of the
Company and its subsidiaries to (i) incur additional debt; (ii) create liens; (iii) make certain investments, acquisitions, loans and advances; (iv) sell assets; (v)
pay dividends or make distributions or make other restricted payments; (vi) prepay other indebtedness; (vii) engage in mergers or consolidations; (viii)
change the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries; (ix) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; (x) enter into agreements that restrict
dividends from subsidiaries or the ability of subsidiaries to grant liens upon their assets; and (xi) amend certain charter documents and material agreements
governing subordinated and junior indebtedness.
The Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default, including: (i) failure to pay principal, interest, fees or other amounts under the Credit
Agreement when due taking into account any applicable grace period; (ii) any representation or warranty proving to have been materially incorrect when
made or deemed made; (iii) a cross default with respect to other material indebtedness; (iv) bankruptcy and insolvency events; (v) unsatisfied material final
judgments; (vi) a “change of control”; (vii) certain defaults under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974; (viii) the invalidity or impairment
of any loan document or any security interest; and (ix) breach of covenants in the Credit Agreement and other loan documents.
In connection with the Credit Agreement, the Company incurred $0.5 million of debt issuance costs during fiscal year 2018, which is being amortized over
the term of the facility.
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Share Repurchase Program
For information regarding our share repurchase program, please refer to Note 7 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Critical Accounting Policies
Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Management bases estimates on historical experience and other assumptions it believes to be reasonable given the circumstances and evaluates these
estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
We believe that the following critical accounting policies involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. See Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, to our audited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete
discussion of our significant accounting policies. The following reflect the significant estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.
Revenue Recognition
We adopted Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on February 4, 2018 using the modified
retrospective approach. Prior period amounts were not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with ASC 605, “Revenue Recognition.” As a result
of adoption of ASC 606, we recorded an adjustment of $2.1 million, net of $0.7 million tax effect, to the beginning balance of retained earnings related to the
change in timing of recognizing gift card breakage income. In addition, the cost of estimated returns is now included in current assets rather than netted with
the allowance for sales returns, and ecommerce sales are now recognized upon shipment rather than delivery to the customer, with the cumulative effect
related to this change determined to be immaterial.
We recognize revenue when control of the merchandise is transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration received in exchange for such
merchandise. For boutique sales, control is transferred at the point at which the customer receives and pays for the merchandise at the register. For ecommerce
sales, control is transferred when merchandise is tendered to a third party carrier for delivery to the customer. The consideration received is the stated price of
the merchandise, net of any discount, sales tax collected and estimated sales returns, and, in the case of ecommerce sales, includes shipping revenue. Cash is
typically received on the day of or, in the case of credit or debit card transactions, within several days of the related sales. Management estimates future
returns on previously sold merchandise based on return history and current sales levels. Estimated returns are periodically compared to actual sales returns
and adjusted, if appropriate. We do not believe that there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be material changes in future estimates or assumptions we
use to calculate our merchandise return reserve; however, if the actual rate of merchandise returns increases significantly, our operating results may be
adversely affected. The provision for estimated returns is included in accrued liabilities while the associated cost of merchandise is included as part of
prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
Inventory Valuation
We value merchandise inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a weighted average cost basis. Inventory costs include cost of merchandise
and freight costs. We record merchandise receipts at the time they are delivered to our distribution center or to our boutiques directly from vendors.
We regularly review our inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise. In order to clear slow-moving merchandise, we use promotional markdowns
or mark certain items out-of-stock and dispose of such inventory at a pace suitable for our merchandising strategy. Each period, we evaluate recent selling
trends and the related promotional events or pricing strategies in place to sell through the current inventory levels. Promotional markdowns, additions to the
lower of cost and net realizable value (“LNRV”) reserve or inventory disposal may occur when inventory exceeds our expected customer demand for reasons
of style, seasonal adaptation, changes in customer preference, lack of consumer acceptance of fashion items, competition or if it is determined that the
inventory in stock will not sell at its currently ticketed price. Such markdowns or disposals may have an adverse impact on earnings, depending on the extent
and amount of inventory affected. In addition, the anticipated deployment of new merchandise is reflected within the estimated future promotional
markdown plan as such new inventory, in certain circumstances, will displace merchandise currently on-hand.
We also estimate an inventory shrinkage reserve for the period of time between the last physical inventory count and the balance sheet date. The estimate for
shrinkage reserve can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in actual shrinkage trends.
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Changes to the LNRV and shrinkage reserves are included in cost of goods sold and occupancy costs in the consolidated statements of operations.
If there are material changes in the estimates or assumptions we use to calculate our LNRV or shrinkage reserves, our operating results could be affected.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
We evaluate long-lived assets held for use and held for sale whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets
may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at
a boutique level. In determining whether an impairment has occurred, we consider both qualitative and quantitative factors.
The quantitative analysis involves estimating the undiscounted future cash flows directly related to that asset and comparing it against its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the
carrying value of the asset and its discounted future cash flows. The discounted future cash flows are determined based on the asset’s historical performance,
current sales trends, market conditions and other relevant factors deemed material, and discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk. The inputs used in
the determination of discounted future cash flows are considered as Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy, which require a significant degree of judgment
and are based on the Company’s own assumptions.
Based on the results of our assessments, we recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $20.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.1 million in fiscal years 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively. These impairment charges relate to 153, 3 and 2 underperforming boutiques in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
for which the remaining net book value of their respective assets are no longer expected to be recoverable. In addition, for fiscal year 2018, the asset
impairment charges includes a $4.9 million write-off of boutique furniture, fixtures and supplies that are no longer intended to be used as a result of
postponing new boutique openings and remodels in future periods.
Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, the amount of taxes currently payable or refundable is accrued, and deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences that currently exist between the tax basis and the
financial reporting basis of the company’s assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established against deferred tax assets when it is more-likely-thannot that the realization of those deferred tax assets will not occur.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates in effect in the years when those temporary differences are expected to reverse. The
effect on deferred taxes from a change in tax rate is recognized through continuing operations in the period that includes the enactment date of the change.
Changes in tax laws and rates could affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future.
On December 22, 2017, the Tax Act was enacted into law effective on January 1, 2018. Upon enactment, we recognized a provisional and one-time non-cash
deferred tax expense of $3.3 million due to the remeasurement of our deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the reduction of the statutory federal tax rate
to 21%. This expense is included as a component of income tax expense for fiscal year 2017. During fiscal year 2018, we completed the analysis of the
impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the previously recorded provisional amount.
We perform an assessment of whether a valuation allowance is necessary against its deferred tax asset at each balance sheet date. Based on available positive
and negative evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and tax
planning strategies, the Company determined that it is not more-likely-than-not that it will realize its deferred tax assets in future periods and therefore, a full
valuation allowance was established at February 2, 2019. Accordingly, we recorded a valuation allowance of $17.1 million on our net deferred tax asset in
fiscal year 2018. We will continue to weigh all available positive and negative evidence in future periods and, in the event that facts and circumstances
change, we may reverse the valuation allowance in future periods which would increase our reported net income in the relevant period.
A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold to be recognized.
We recognize tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions and adjust these liabilities when the Company’s judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new
information not previously available. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense. There were no
uncertain tax positions requiring accrual at February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018.
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Stock-based Compensation
Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period (which generally is
the vesting period of the award). Beginning in fiscal year 2018, forfeitures were recognized as they occur rather than estimating expected forfeitures.
We recognized stock-based compensation amounting to $1.3 million, $2.4 million and $1.0 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.
Stock-based compensation expense in fiscal years 2018 and 2016 included a $0.8 million and $2.6 million, respectively, reversal of previously accrued
stock-based compensation expense related to the forfeiture of unvested awards granted to our previous Chief Executive Officers who resigned from their
respective position in those years. The net reversal was recorded during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2018 and the second quarter of fiscal year 2016,
respectively.
Restricted Stock
The fair value of restricted stocks awards is determined based on the closing price of our common stock on the award date. For restricted stock awards subject
to performance conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period when it is probable that the specified performance goals will
be achieved. We assess the probability of vesting at each reporting period and adjust stock-based compensation based on the results of such assessment. As a
result of this assessment, the Company recognized a reversal of previously accrued expenses totaling $0.9 million, $1.2 million and $0 in fiscal years 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively.
Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measurement of the estimated fair value of our stock-based compensation.
Stock Options
We generally use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options, except for stock options subject to market conditions
for which we use a Monte-Carlo simulation model. The determination of fair value using each of these models consider the following assumptions.
·

Expected volatility. We estimated expected volatility using the historical volatility of our own common stock.

·

Expected term. The expected term represents the period of time options are expected to be outstanding. Due to lack of sufficient historical data, we
use the “simplified method” as allowed by SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 14D2 to estimate the expected term. The simplified method defines
expected term as the midpoint between the vesting date and the contractual term of the stock option.

·

Risk-free interest rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the rate of treasury instruments whose maturities are similar to those of the expected term
of the award being valued.

·

Expected dividend yield. The expected dividend yield is based on our expectations of not paying dividends on our common stock for the
foreseeable future.

No stock options were granted in fiscal years 2018 and 2017. The grant date fair value of stock options granted in 2016 was estimated using expected
volatility of 54.2%, expected term of 5.5 years, risk-free interest rate of 1.2%, and expected dividend yield of 0%.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We are not party to any off balance sheet arrangements.
Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of February 2, 2019 and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and
cash flows in future periods.
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Payments Due by Period
Less than
1 year

Total
Long term debt
Estimated interest on debt (1)
Operating lease obligations(2)
Merchandise purchase commitments(3)
Contracts for software application implementation

$

10,000
2,287
244,891
28,927
5,934

$

530
48,644
28,927
3,170

1-3 years
(in thousands)
$
1,059
80,141
2,540

More than
5 years

3-5 years
$

10,000
698
57,067
224

$

59,039
-

(1) Includes $1.9 million estimated interest on outstanding borrowing and $0.4 million unused commitment fee. For purposes of this table, we estimated the
interest on outstanding borrowing and unused commitment fee using $10.0 million outstanding, $40.0 unused revolver commitment, 4.4% current
interest rate and 0.20% unused commitment fee rate under our asset based revolving credit facility at February 2, 2019.
(2) Excludes common area maintenance charges, real estate taxes and certain other expenses which amounted to approximately 46% of minimum lease
obligations in fiscal year 2018.
Impact of Inflation
Our results of operations and financial condition are presented based on historical cost. While it is difficult to accurately measure the impact of inflation due
to the imprecise nature of the estimates required, we believe the effects of inflation, if any, on our results of operations and financial condition have been
immaterial. We cannot assure you, however, that our results of operations and financial condition will not be materially impacted by inflation in the future.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a description of recent accounting pronouncements, please refer to Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our audited consolidated
financial statements included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Item 8 of this Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our principal exposure to market risk relates to changes in interest rates. Our Asset Based Revolving Credit Facility carries floating interest rates that are tied
to LIBOR, the federal funds rate and the prime rate, and therefore, our statements of operations and our cash flows could be exposed to changes in interest
rates to the extent that we do not use effective hedging arrangements. We historically have not used derivative financial instruments for speculative or
trading purposes, however, this does not preclude our adoption of specific hedging strategies in the future. At February 2, 2019, $10.0 million was
outstanding under the Credit Agreement and the interest rate on our borrowings was 4.4%. Based on a sensitivity analysis at February 2, 2019, assuming the
loan balance would be outstanding for a full fiscal year, a 100 basis points increase in interest rates would increase annual interest expense by $0.1 million.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the Company) as of February 2, 2019 and February 3,
2018, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
February 2, 2019, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2, 2019, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2019, based on criteria established in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated May 3, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.
Adoption of New Accounting Standard
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 4, 2018, the Company changed its method for recognizing revenue using
the modified retrospective adoption method under Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
as amended.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company‘s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company‘s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company
in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2010.
Houston, Texas
May 3, 2019
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Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)
February 2,
2019

February 3,
2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes, net
Other assets, net
TOTAL ASSETS

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Landlord incentives and deferred rent
Long term debt
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock-$.01 par value, 80.0 million shares authorized, 46.7 million and 46.3 million shares issued as of
February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018, respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost – 11.1 million and 10.3 million shares held at February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018,
respectively.
Total stockholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

$

$

24,330
11,333
35,663
33,989
10,000
79,652

$

$

467
112,693
120,251

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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20,103
16,309
30,478
10,357
77,247
71,207
4,588
153,042

(160,021 )
73,390
153,042 $

31,331
16,642
26,816
9,714
84,503
87,702
9,413
3,622
185,240

17,801
14,654
32,455
38,337
70,792

463
111,439
159,045
(156,499 )
114,448
185,240

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Asset impairment charges
(Loss) income from operations
Interest expense
Other income
(Loss) income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net (loss) income

Fiscal Year Ended
February 2,
February 3,
January 28,
2019
2018
2017
$
428,115 $
471,678 $
487,188
265,119
264,915
258,561
162,996
206,763
228,627
176,379
176,543
160,561
20,122
258
141
(33,505)
29,962
67,925
(426)
(452)
(464)
483
346
147
(33,448)
29,856
67,608
7,493
14,295
25,607
$
(40,941 ) $
15,561 $
42,001

Basic (loss) earnings per common share
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share

$
$

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic shares
Diluted shares

(1.18) $
(1.18) $
34,805
34,805

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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0.43
0.43
36,168
36,300

$
$

1.09
1.09
38,429
38,551

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands)

Balance, January 30, 2016
Net income
Stock-based compensation
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures
Stock options exercised
Tax effect of stock-based compensation
Repurchases of common stock
Balance, January 28, 2017
Cumulative effect adjustment on adoption of new
accounting standards
Net income
Stock-based compensation
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures
Stock options exercised
Shares withheld related to net settlement of equity awards
Repurchases of common stock
Balance, February 3, 2018
Cumulative effect adjustment on adoption of new
accounting standards
Net loss
Stock-based compensation
Restricted stocks issued, net of forfeitures
Shares withheld related to net settlement of equity awards
Repurchases of common stock
Balance, February 2, 2019

Common Stock
Shares
Par
Outstanding
Value
41,095 $
459
200
2
50
(3,804 )
37,541 $
461
189
26
(20)
(1,861 )
35,875 $
462
(13)
(659 )
35,665

2
463
4
467

Additional
Paid-In
Retained
Capital
Earnings
$ 107,693 $ 101,556
42,001
1,016
512
(213)
$ 109,008 $ 143,557

$

120
2,430
(2)
96
(213)
111,439 $
1,335
(4)
(77)
112,693

(73)
15,561
(20,008 )
159,045 $ (156,499) $

47
15,561
2,430
96
(213)
(20,008 )
114,448

2,147
(40,941)
120,251

2,147
(40,941)
1,335
(77)
(3,522 )
73,390

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Treasury
Total
Stock,
Stockholders’
at cost
Equity
$ (83,316) $
126,392
42,001
1,016
2
512
(213)
(53,175 )
(53,175 )
$ (136,491) $
116,535

(3,522 )
(160,021 )

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash flows
(In thousands)

February 2,
2019
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities:
Net (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation
Asset impairment charges
Loss on disposal of assets
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Landlord incentives and deferred rent
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings under revolving credit facility
Repurchases of common stock
Payment of debt issuance costs
Taxes paid related to net settlement of equity awards
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3,
2018

(40,941) $

$

42,001

24,532
1,335
20,122
761
204
8,706

21,202
2,430
258
733
250
6,099

19,337
1,016
(34)
141
407
245
(5,411)

246
(3,699)
(2,566)
5,739
(558)
(4,348 )
9,533

(10,764)
(2,858)
(3,177)
6,013
(11,167)
245
24,825

3,975
7,583
(3,160)
(4,936)
9,467
1,540
72,171

(26,199)
(26,199 )

(26,778)
(26,778 )

(21,852)
8
(21,844 )

10,000
(3,980)
(505)
(77)
5,438

(19,860)
(154)
96
(19,918 )

(53,853)
(42)
512
34
(53,349 )

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

(11,228)
31,331
20,103 $

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for income taxes
Interest paid

$
$

75
209

$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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15,561

January 28,
2017

(21,871)
53,202
31,331 $

24,163
192

$
$

(3,022)
56,224
53,202

19,324
192

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company” or “Holdings”) is a holding company incorporated in 2007 under the laws of Delaware. The Company’s
business operations are conducted through its subsidiaries. The Company operates a nationwide-chain of boutiques providing customers a unique, fun and
differentiated shopping experience. The Company offers a diverse and balanced mix of apparel, jewelry, accessories and gifts at attractive values. At February
2, 2019, the Company operated 727 boutiques, which are located in 47 states throughout the United States and the District of Columbia, and its ecommerce
website.
Fiscal Year
The Company maintains its accounts on a 52- to 53- week year ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. All references herein to fiscal year “2018”
represents the 52-week period ended February 2, 2019, fiscal year “2017” represents the 53-week period ended February 3, 2018 and fiscal year “2016”
represents the 52-week period ended January 28, 2017.
Principles of Consolidation and Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Reclassification
Asset impairment charges, which was previously included as part of selling, general and administrative expenses, are now presented as a separate line item in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Accordingly, prior year presentation has been updated to conform to the current presentation. This
reclassification had no impact on previously reported financial results.
Management Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, net of estimated sales return, and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified using the following hierarchy, which is based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation at the measurement date.
·
·
·

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs based on the Company’s own assumptions.

The classification of fair value measurements within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement.
Financial assets and liabilities with carrying amounts approximating fair value include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. The carrying amount of these financial assets and liabilities approximates fair value because of their short maturities.
Non-financial assets and liabilities, including long-lived assets, are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The fair value of those assets is
determined using Level 3 inputs which generally requires the Company to make estimates of future cash flows based on historical experience, current trends,
market conditions and other relevant factors deemed material.
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FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all interest-bearing deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The
Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions that may from time to time exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s insurance limits.
The Company mitigates this concentration of credit risk by monitoring the credit worthiness of the financial institutions.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from credit card companies, tenant allowances due from landlords and income tax receivable, if any. The
Company’s management has reviewed accounts receivable for collectability and has determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts is not necessary at
February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018.
Inventory
The Company values merchandise inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a weighted-average cost basis. Inventory costs include freight
costs. The Company records merchandise receipts at the time they are delivered to the distribution center or to its boutiques directly from vendors.
The Company reviews its inventory levels to identify slow-moving merchandise. In order to clear slow-moving merchandise, the Company uses promotional
markdowns or marks certain items out-of-stock and disposes of such inventory at a pace suitable for its merchandising strategy. Each period, the Company
evaluates recent selling trends and the related promotional events or pricing strategies in place to sell through the current inventory levels.
The Company also estimates a shrinkage reserve for the period of time between the last physical count and the balance sheet date. The estimate for shrinkage
reserve can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in actual shrinkage trends.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis for financial reporting purposes using
the following useful lives:
Assets
Equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Software, including software developed for internal use
Signage and leasehold improvements

Estimated Useful Lives
3 - 5 years
5 years
3 - 9 years
the lesser of 5 - 10 years or lease term

Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset is placed in service and / or ready for use.
When a decision is made to dispose of property and equipment prior to the end of its previously estimated useful life, the Company accelerates depreciation
to reflect the use of the asset over the shortened estimated useful life. Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are expensed as incurred, and major
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated
from the accounts, and any gain or loss is reflected in current earnings.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
The Company evaluates long-lived assets held for use and held for sale whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
those assets may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows, which is
generally at a boutique level. In determining whether an impairment has occurred, the Company considers both qualitative and quantitative factors.
The quantitative analysis involves estimating the undiscounted future cash flows directly related to that asset and comparing it against its carrying value. If
the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the
carrying value of the asset and its discounted future cash flows. The discounted future cash flows are determined based on the asset’s historical performance,
current sales trends, market conditions and other relevant factors deemed material, and discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk. The inputs used in
the determination of discounted future cash flows are considered as Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy, which require a significant degree of judgment
and are based on the Company’s own assumptions.
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FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Operating Leases
The Company leases boutiques and its distribution center and office space under operating leases. The majority of the Company’s lease agreements provide
for tenant improvement allowances, rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions.
The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which generally begins on the possession date. Certain leases provide for
contingent rents, in addition to a basic fixed rent, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels. The Company records a
contingent rent liability and the corresponding rent expense when specified levels have been achieved or when management determines that achieving the
specified levels during the fiscal year is probable.
Landlord incentives, such as tenant improvement allowances, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term as a reduction of rent
expense.
Revenue Recognition
The Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on February 4, 2018 using the modified
retrospective approach. Prior period amounts were not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with ASC 605, “Revenue Recognition.” As a result
of adoption of ASC 606, the Company recorded an adjustment of $2.1 million, net of $0.7 million tax effect, to the beginning balance of retained earnings
related to the change in timing of recognizing gift card breakage income. In addition, the cost of estimated returns is now included in current assets rather
than netted with the allowance for sales returns, and ecommerce sales are now recognized upon shipment rather than delivery to the customer, with the
cumulative effect related to this change determined to be immaterial.
The Company recognizes revenue when control of the merchandise is transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration received in
exchange for such merchandise. For boutique sales, control is transferred at the point at which the customer receives and pays for the merchandise at the
register. For ecommerce sales, control is transferred when merchandise is tendered to a third party carrier for delivery to the customer. The consideration
received is the stated price of the merchandise, net of any discount, sales tax collected and estimated sales returns, and, in the case of ecommerce sales,
includes shipping revenue. Cash is typically received on the day of or, in the case of credit or debit card transactions, within several days of the related sales.
Management estimates future returns on previously sold merchandise based on return history and current sales levels. Estimated returns are periodically
compared to actual sales returns and adjusted, if appropriate. The provision for estimated returns is included in accrued liabilities while the associated cost of
merchandise is included as part of prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
Disaggregated revenue
The Company disaggregates net sales into the following major merchandise departments.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, February 3, January 28,
2019
2018
2017
(in thousands)
$
200,736 $
235,048 $
244,156
104,714
104,638
109,642
69,219
69,004
69,900
50,311
59,286
62,008
3,135
3,702
1,482
$
428,115 $
471,678 $
487,188

Apparel
Jewelry
Accessories
Gifts
Other(1)

(1) Includes gift card breakage income, shipping revenue and change in return reserve.
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Contract liability
Contract liability consists of gift card liability. The Company accounts for the sale of gift cards as a liability at the time a gift card is sold. The liability is
relieved and revenue is recognized upon redemption of the gift card. The Company’s gift cards do not have an expiration date. Income from gift card
breakage is estimated based on historical redemption patterns and recognized over the historical redemption period. Unredeemed gift cards at the end of the
prior fiscal year recognized in revenues during fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were $4.5 million and $6.4 million, respectively. Revenue from gift cards during
fiscal year 2017 included $1.5 million of additional gift card breakage income recognized due to the change in estimated period over which redemption of
gift card is considered to be remote.
Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Costs
Cost of goods sold and occupancy costs include the cost of purchased merchandise, freight costs from the Company’s suppliers to its distribution centers and
freight costs for merchandise shipped directly from its vendors to its boutiques, allowances for inventory shrinkage and obsolescence, boutique occupancy
costs including rent, utilities, common area maintenance, property taxes, boutique assets depreciation, boutique repair and maintenance costs, and shipping
costs related to ecommerce sales.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses include boutique and headquarters payroll (including buying department), employee benefits, freight from
distribution centers to boutiques, boutique pre-opening expense, credit card merchant fees, costs of maintaining the Company’s ecommerce operations, travel
and administration costs, corporate asset depreciation, stock-based compensation and other expenses related to operations at the corporate headquarters.
Freight costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses amounted to $4.4 million, $4.8 million and $4.2 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017,
and 2016, respectively.
Advertising
Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred or, in the case of media production costs (such as television or print), when advertising first takes place.
Advertising costs were $5.3 million, $4.2 million and $2.5 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date fair value and recognized as expense over the requisite service period (generally the vesting period
of the award). Beginning in fiscal year 2018, forfeitures were recognized as they occur rather than estimating expected forfeitures.
The fair value of time-based stock options is estimated using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of market-based stock options is
estimated using a Monte-Carlo simulation method. Both methods require extensive use of judgment and estimates, including expected stock volatility,
expected term, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield.
The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the award date. For awards subject to
performance conditions, compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period when it is probable that the specified performance goals will
be achieved.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, the amount of taxes currently payable or refundable is accrued, and
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences that currently exist between the tax basis
and the financial reporting basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established against deferred tax assets when it is morelikely-than-not that the realization of those deferred tax assets will not occur.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates in effect in the years when those temporary differences are expected to reverse. The
effect on deferred taxes from a change in tax rate is recognized through continuing operations in the period that includes the enactment date of the change.
Changes in tax laws and rates could affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future.
A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more-likely-than-not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold to be recognized. The Company recognizes tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions and adjusts these liabilities when the Company’s
judgment changes as a result of the evaluation of new information not previously available. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized in income tax expense. The Company has no uncertain tax positions requiring accrual at February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018.
New Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In August 2018, the SEC adopted the final rule under SEC Release 34-83875, “Disclosure Update and Simplification”, which amended certain SEC rules to
eliminate, modify, or integrate certain SEC requirements in light of other SEC disclosure requirements, GAAP requirements and changes in information
environment. The amendments are part of the SEC’s ongoing disclosure effectiveness initiative and eliminated redundant and duplicative requirements
including, but not limited to, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, outdated regulatory disclosures, certain accounting policies about derivative instruments
and specific SEC disclosures that are also required under current GAAP. The amended rules became effective on November 5, 2018 and are to be applied to
any SEC filings on or after that date. The Company adopted the provisions of this rule during the thirteen weeks ended November 3, 2018. The effectiveness
of these rule modifications did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-04 “Liabilities - Extinguishments
of Liabilities (Subtopic 405-20), Recognition of Breakage for Certain Prepaid Stored-Value Products.” The new guidance allows a company to derecognize
amounts related to expected breakage to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of the recognized breakage amount will not subsequently
occur. ASU 2016-04 is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption
permitted. This standard may be adopted on either a modified retrospective or a retrospective basis.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.” This pronouncement requires entities to recognize revenue in a way
that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the entity expects to be entitled to in
exchange for those goods and services. This standard is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2017, including interim periods
within that fiscal year, with early adoption permitted for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2016. Since the original issuance of
ASU 2014-09, the FASB has issued several amendments and updates to this guidance. This guidance may be adopted on a full retrospective basis to each
prior reporting period presented or on a modified retrospective basis with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of
initial application.
The Company adopted ASU 2016-04 and ASU 2014-09 on February 4, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach. Please refer to the Revenue
Recognition policy section of this Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-Use-Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s Accounting for
Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a Service Contract.” ASU 2018-15 aligns the requirements for capitalizing
implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to
develop or obtain internal-use software. This new guidance will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the new guidance will have on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” The new guidance, among other things, requires lessees to recognize the following
for all leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date: (i) a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments
arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis and (ii) a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use, or control the use of,
a specified asset for the lease term. Under the new guidance, lessor accounting is largely unchanged. Certain targeted improvements were made to align,
where necessary, lessor accounting with the lessee accounting model and ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In July 2018, the FASB
issued ASU 2018-11, “Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements,” to provide an additional, optional transition method for adopting ASU 2016-02 which
allow entities to apply the new lease standard at the adoption date and recognize a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
in the period of adoption while comparative periods presented will continue to be in presented in accordance with current ASC Topic 840, Leases. This new
guidance will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted.
The guidance is required to be adopted using either the modified retrospective approach or the additional, optional transition method set forth in ASU 201811.
The Company adopted the new guidance on February 3, 2019 using the additional, optional transition method with cumulative adjustment to retained
earnings. In addition, the Company expects to elect the package of practical expedients, which allows the Company to carry forward its prior conclusions
about lease identification, lease classification and initial direct costs. The Company also intends to elect the practical expedient of combining lease and nonlease components as a single lease component as well as the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases at and after transition.
The Company is in the process of finalizing the adoption of this new standard, which includes validation work over implementation as well as updating
business processes and internal control over financial reporting. As a result of the adoption, it expects to record a right-of-use liability of between $240.0
million and $300.0 million and right-of-use asset of between $165.0 million and $225.0 million at February 3, 2019. These estimates are based upon
information available and procedures completed to date and may change as the implementation is finalized. The Company does not expect that the adoption
of ASC 842 will result in a material impact to the consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, or cash flows.
2.

(Loss) Earnings per Share

Basic (loss) earnings per common share amounts are calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted
(loss) earnings per common share amounts are calculated using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period and include the
dilutive impact of shares of restricted stock and stock options using the treasury stock method. The following table summarizes the potential dilutive impact
that could occur if outstanding options to acquire common stock were exercised or if outstanding restricted stocks have fully vested, and reconciles the
weighted-average common shares outstanding used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.
Fiscal Years Ended
February 2,
February 3,
January 28,
2019
2018
2017
(In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net (loss) income

$

Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding-basic
Restricted stock and stock options (1)
Weighted-average common shares outstanding-diluted

$

Per common share:
Basic (loss) earnings per common share
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share

$
$

(40,941 ) $

$

42,001

$

36,168
132
36,300

$

38,429
122
38,551

(1.18) $
(1.18) $

0.43
0.43

$
$

1.09
1.09

34,805
34,805

15,561

(1) Due to the Company being in a net loss position in fiscal year 2018, shares of restricted stock and stock options were excluded in the computation of
diluted loss per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.
Potentially issuable shares under the Company’s stock-based compensation plan amounting to approximately 1.0 million, 0.4 million and 0.3 million shares
for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were excluded in the computation of diluted earnings per share due to their anti-dilutive effect. The
Company also excluded contingently issuable performance awards totaling 0.3 million, 0.3 million and 0.2 million shares for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively, from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the pre-established goals have not been satisfied.
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3.

Detail of Certain Balance Sheet Accounts
As of Fiscal Year Ended
February 2,
February 3,
2019
2018
(in thousands)
Accounts receivable:
Income tax receivable
Credit card receivables
Tenant allowances
Others

$

$
Property and equipment, net:
Signage and leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Software
Equipment
Construction in progress
Total
Less accumulated depreciation

$

$
Accrued liabilities:
Gift cards
Accrued payroll, benefits and bonuses
Accrued sales tax
Accrued interest

$

$
Landlord incentives and deferred rent:
Landlord incentives
Deferred rent

$
$

4.

10,809
2,752
1,785
963
16,309

$

$

107,050 $
22,780
15,590
9,251
2,348
157,019
(85,812 )
71,207 $

5,642
4,615
1,046
30
11,333

$

21,139
12,850
33,989

$

$

$

9,744
2,779
3,624
495
16,642

119,340
22,954
13,114
8,663
8,332
172,403
(84,701 )
87,702

8,482
5,134
1,019
19
14,654

25,255
13,082
38,337

Asset Impairment Charges

In connection with the Company’s quarterly impairment review process, the Company identified events and circumstances indicating that the carrying
amounts of certain boutique long-lived assets may be impaired. Accordingly, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $20.1 million, $0.3
million and $0.1 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These impairment charges were related to 153, 3 and 2 underperforming
boutiques in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, for which the remaining, or a portion of the remaining, net book value of their respective assets
are no longer expected to be recoverable. Additionally, the asset impairment charge for fiscal year 2018 included a $4.9 million write-off of boutique
furniture, fixtures and supplies that are no longer intended to be used as a result of temporarily suspending new boutique openings and remodels in future
periods.
5.

Income Taxes

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) was enacted into law effective on January 1, 2018. Upon enactment, the Company
recognized a provisional and one-time non-cash deferred tax expense of $3.3 million due to the remeasurement of the Company’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities based on the reduction of the statutory federal tax rate to 21%. This expense is included as a component of income tax expense for fiscal year 2017.
During fiscal year 2018, the Company completed the analysis of the impact of the Tax Act and determined that no material adjustments was needed to the
previously recorded provisional amount.
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The provision for income tax expense or (benefit) for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

February 2,
2019
Current:
Federal
State
Total
Deferred:
Federal
State
Total
Income tax expense

$

$

Fiscal Years Ended
February 3,
January 28,
2018
2017
(in thousands)

(974) $
(252 )
(1,226 )

6,882 $
1,314
8,196

27,306
3,712
31,018

4,288
4,431
8,719
7,493 $

6,373
(274 )
6,099
14,295 $

(4,526)
(885 )
(5,411 )
25,607

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective tax rate follows:
Fiscal Years Ended
February 2,
February 3,
2019
2018
(21.0)%
33.4%
51.2
(6.7)
1.9
0.2
0.9
11.0
(1.3 )
0.7
22.4 %
47.9 %

Income tax (benefit) expense at statutory rate
Valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets
State tax (benefit), net of federal (benefit) expense
Nondeductible expenses
Deferred tax remeasurement under the Tax Act
Other
Effective tax rate

January 28,
2017
35.0%
2.8
0.2
(0.1 )
37.9 %

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded due to different carrying amounts for financial and income tax reporting purposes arising from cumulative
temporary differences as measured by enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these temporary differences reverse. These differences consist of the
following as of the dates indicated:
As of Fiscal Year Ended
February 2,
February 3,
2019
2018
(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Landlord incentives and deferred rents
Net operating losses
Inventories
Accrued liabilities
Stock-based compensation
Other
Deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
Valuation allowance

$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment

Net deferred tax assets

$
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8,113
7,686
2,143
1,690
1,244
26
20,902
(17,117 )
3,785

8,969
672
2,380
2,708
1,477
34
16,240
16,240

(3,785 )
(3,785 )

(6,827 )
(6,827 )

- $

9,413
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Carryforwards
The federal net operating loss carryforward which totaled $5.2 million as of February 2, 2019 has no expiration date under the Tax Act while the state net
operating loss carryforward which totaled $2.5 million as of February 2, 2019 will expire in various tax years through fiscal year 2039.
Valuation Allowance
The Company performs an assessment of whether a valuation allowance is necessary against its deferred tax asset at each balance sheet date. Based on
available positive and negative evidence, including past operating results, estimates of future income, future reversals of existing taxable temporary
differences and tax planning strategies, the Company determined that it is more-likely-than-not that it will not realize its deferred tax assets in future periods
and therefore, a full valuation allowance was established at February 2, 2019. Accordingly, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of $17.1 million on
its net deferred tax asset in fiscal year 2018.
The Company, in subsequent periods, will continue to weigh all available positive and negative evidence when it assesses the necessity of a valuation
allowance at each balance sheet date. If the Company recognizes earnings in future periods, the availability of deferred tax assets may result in additional
value to the shareholders. In such event, the Company may reverse the valuation allowance, which would result in an increase in reported income in the
relevant period. Any such subsequent reversal of the valuation allowance would not impact the Company’s cash or cash equivalents until such time as the
deferred tax asset is realized.
Fiscal Years Subject to Examination
The Company’s tax years are subject to examination by federal authorities from 2015 forward and by state taxing authorities from 2014 forward.
6.

Revolving Credit Facility

Prior Revolving Credit Facility
On August 30, 2013, Francesca’s Collections, Inc., as borrower, and its parent company, Francesca’s LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”) with Royal Bank of Canada, as
Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, and the lenders party thereto. The credit facility provided capacity of $75.0 million (including up to
$10.0 million for letters of credit) and was scheduled to mature on August 30, 2018. On May 25, 2018, concurrent with entering into the Asset Based
Revolving Credit Facility described below, the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was terminated.
Asset Based Revolving Credit Agreement
On May 25, 2018, Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Holdings”), as a guarantor, certain of its subsidiaries, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), and certain of
its subsidiaries as guarantors (together with Holdings and the Borrowers, the “Loan Parties”), entered into an asset based revolving credit agreement (“Credit
Agreement”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the lenders party thereto. The Credit Agreement provides for revolving
commitments of $50.0 million (including up to $10.0 million for letters of credit) and matures on May 25, 2023. Availability under the Credit Agreement is
subject to a customary borrowing base comprised of: (a) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s credit card accounts (as defined in the Credit Agreement);
and (b) a specified percentage of the Borrower’s eligible inventory (as defined in the Credit Agreement), and reduced by (c) certain customary reserves and
adjustments (as defined in the Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement also contains an increase option permitting the Borrowers, subject to certain
requirements, to arrange with lenders for additional revolving commitments for up to an aggregate of $25.0 million. At February 2, 2019, the Company had
$10.0 million of borrowings outstanding and $12.3 million of borrowing base availability under the Credit Agreement. Additionally, there were no letters of
credit outstanding as of February 2, 2019.
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All obligations of each Loan Party under the Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and each of the Company’s existing and
future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries, including the Borrowers. All obligations under the Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of
those obligations (as well as banking services obligations and any interest rate hedging or other swap agreements), are secured by substantially all of the
assets of the Company and each of the Company’s existing and future direct and indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries. Additionally, the Credit
Agreement contains customary events of default and requires the Loan Parties to comply with certain financial covenants, including a restriction prohibiting
the Loan Parties from declaring or making dividend payments, except that Holdings may do so subject to the satisfaction of the Payment Conditions (as
defined in the Credit Agreement). The Credit Agreement also requires that the auditor’s report on the Company’s financial statements for the previous fiscal
year does not contain a “going concern” or like qualification or exception and also requires the Loan Parties to maintain a minimum ratio of (i) EBITDAR (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) minus unfinanced capital expenditures (as defined in the Credit Agreement), to (ii) fixed charges of 1.00 to 1.00 during
periods when availability (as defined in the Credit Agreement) is less than $6.0 million (or has recently been less than $6.0 million as further specified in the
Credit Agreement) (such ratio, the “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio”). As of February 2, 2019, our borrowing availability was more than $6.0 million, resulting
in the elimination of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio requirement.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the option of the Borrowers, either (a) in the case of base
rate borrowings, a rate equal to the highest of (1) the prime rate of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., (2) the federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1.00%, and (3) LIBOR for
an interest period of one month plus 1.00% (subject to a 0.0% LIBOR floor), provided that that the interest rate for base rate borrowings (including the
addition of the applicable margin) shall be no less than 1.50% per annum, or (b) in the case of LIBOR borrowings, a rate equal to the LIBOR for the interest
period relevant to such borrowing subject to a 0.00% floor. The applicable margin for borrowings under the Credit Agreement ranges from -0.50% to 0.00%
per annum with respect to base rate borrowings and from 1.25% to 1.75% per annum with respect to LIBOR borrowings, in each case based upon the
achievement of specified levels of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. The Credit Agreement also requires the Borrowers to pay a commitment fee for the
unused portion of the revolving facility of 0.20% per annum.
In connection with the Credit Agreement, the Company incurred $0.5 million of debt issuance costs during the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019, which is
being amortized over the term of the facility.
7.

Share Repurchases

On September 3, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a $100.0 million share repurchase program (“Previous Repurchase Plan”) commencing
on the same date. In April 2016, the authorized amount was fully exhausted.
On March 15, 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized an additional $100.0 million share repurchase program (“New Repurchase Plan”) which
commenced upon exhaustion of the Previous Repurchase Plan. The New Repurchase Plan has no expiration date. Under the New Repurchase Plan, purchases
can be made from time to time in the open market, in privately negotiated transactions, under Rule 10b5-1 plans or through other available means. The
specific timing and amount of the repurchases is dependent on market conditions, securities law limitations and other factors.
The following table summarizes the Company’s repurchase activity for the periods presented. The cost of repurchased shares is presented as treasury stock in
the consolidated balance sheets.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 2, 2019 February 3, 2018 January 29, 2017
(in thousands, except per data)
659
1,861
3,804
3,522 $
20,008 $
53,175
$
5.34 $
10.75 $
13.98

Number of shares repurchased
Total cost of shares repurchased
Average price (including brokers' commission)

At February 2, 2019, there was $40.2 million remaining balance available for future purchases.
8.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense, which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses, consisted of the following.
Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2018 January 28, 2017
(in thousands)
293 $
700 $
(809)
1,042
1,730
1,825
1,335 $
2,430 $
1,016

February 2, 2019
Stock options
Restricted stocks

$
$

56

FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In January 2019, Mr. Steve Lawrence resigned from his positions as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors, effective February 1, 2019. In May 2016, Mr. Michael Barnes resigned from his positions as Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. As a result of these resignations, all of the then-outstanding and unvested stock-based awards previously awarded to each of them were forfeited.
Previously accrued stock-based compensation totaling $0.8 million and $2.6 million were reversed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2018 and the
second quarter of fiscal year 2016, respectively, in connection with such forfeiture.
Stock Incentive Plans
2010 Stock Incentive Plan
On February 27, 2010, the Company adopted the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2010 Plan”) to be administered by the
Board or a Committee. Under the 2010 Plan, awards may be in the form of stock options, stock or restricted stock and may be granted to any officers,
directors, eligible employees and consultants of the Company. Exercise prices shall not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at
the date of grant as determined by the Board. The awards generally vest over four to five years and have a ten year contractual term. As of July 14, 2011, the
Company can no longer grant awards under the 2010 Plan.
2011 Stock Incentive Plan
On July 14, 2011, the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) was approved by the stockholders and became immediately effective. Under the 2011
Plan, awards may be in the form of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonuses, restricted stock, performance stock and other stockbased awards which can be granted to any officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. Awards granted under the 2011 Plan generally vest
over three to five years and have a ten-year contractual life. As of June 9, 2015, the Company can no longer grant awards under the 2011 Plan.
2015 Stock Incentive Plan
On June 9, 2015, the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2015 Plan”) was approved by the stockholders and became immediately effective. Under the 2015
Plan, awards may be in the form of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonuses, restricted stock, stock units, performance stock and
other stock-based awards which can be granted to any officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. A total of 2.6 million shares of common
stock are authorized for issuance under the 2015 Plan which may be increased by the number of awards cancelled, forfeited, expired, or for any reason
terminated under the 2011 Plan after June 9, 2015. Awards granted under the 2015 Plan generally vest over three to five years and options and stock
appreciation rights have a ten-year contractual life. As of February 2, 2019, there were approximately 1.5 million shares remaining that can be subject to new
awards granted under the 2015 Plan.
Restricted Stock
The following table summarizes restricted stock activity during fiscal year 2018.
Number of
Shares
(in thousands)
512
1,032
(119)
(630 )
795

Non-vested restricted stocks as of February 3, 2018
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Non-vested restricted stocks as of February 2, 2019
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Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Value
(Per share data)
$
13.06
$
4.97
$
13.17
$
9.90
$
6.35
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During fiscal year 2018 and 2017, the Company granted approximately 0.9 million and 0.3 million shares of restricted stock to certain executives and key
employees. For the fiscal year 2018 award, 50% of the total shares awarded were in the form of performance-based restricted shares (“PSA”) while the
remaining 50% were in the form of time-based restricted shares (“RSA”). For the fiscal year 2017 award, 65% of the award were in the form of PSAs while the
remaining 35% were in the form of RSAs. The number of PSAs that may ultimately vest will equal 0% to 150% of the target shares subject to the achievement
of pre-established performance goals during the applicable performance period and the employees’ continued employment through the third year anniversary
of the date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company assessed the probability of achieving the pre-established performance conditions related to the PSAs. As a
result of this assessment, the Company recognized a reversal of previously accrued expenses totaling $0.9 million, $1.2 million, $0 in fiscal years 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, restricted stocks were granted at a fair value of $4.97, $14.43 and $16.44, respectively. The total fair value of
restricted stock that vested were $0.7 million, $1.4 million, and $0.3, during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. As of February 2, 2019, there
was approximately $2.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock awards that is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2 years.
Stock Options
The following table summarizes stock option activity during fiscal year 2018. The intrinsic value of the stock options was calculated based the closing price
of the Company’s common stock on the last trading day closest to February 2, 2019.

Stock options outstanding as of February 3, 2018
Expired
Stock options outstanding as of February 2, 2019
Stock options exercisable as of February 2, 2019

Number of
Options
(in thousands)
431
139
292
252

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
(Per share data)
$
17.70
24.87
14.24
14.06

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life
(in Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value
(In thousands)

5
4

–
–

No stock options were awarded during fiscal years 2018 and 2017. In fiscal year 2016, stock options were granted at a weighted-average grant date fair value
of $8.44.
No stock options were exercised in fiscal year 2018. In fiscal years 2017 and 2016, the intrinsic value of stock options at the date of exercise amounted to less
than $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively.
The fair value of stock options was estimated using Black Scholes option pricing model, in the case of time-based awards, or Monte Carlo simulation, in the
case of market-based awards, which considers the following significant assumptions in determining the fair value. Changes in any of these assumptions can
materially affect the measurement of the estimated fair value of stock options.
Fiscal Year
2017

2018
Expected volatility (1)
Expected term (in years) (2)
Risk-free interest rate (3)
Expected dividend yield (4)

–
–
–
–

2016
–
–
–
–

54.2%
5.5
1.2%
–

(1) Expected volatility was estimated using the historical volatility of the Company’s own common stock.
(2) Due to lack of sufficient historical data, the expected term was determined using the “simplified method” as allowed by SEC SAB Topic
14D2.
(3) The risk-free interest rate was determined based on the rate of treasury instruments with maturities similar to those of the expected term of
the award being valued.
(4) The expected dividend yield was based on the Company’s expectations of not paying dividends on its common stock for the foreseeable
future.
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As of February 2, 2019, there was approximately $0.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option awards that is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1 year.
9.

Employee Benefits

The Company has adopted Francesca’s Collections, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) under which full-time and part-time employees who are
at least 21 years of age and have completed six consecutive months of employment are eligible to participate. Employees may elect to contribute a certain
percentage of their earnings subject to limitations provided for by the law. The Company makes matching contributions of up to a maximum of 4% of the
employees’ salary. The Company may also make discretionary profit sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan. No profit sharing contributions were made in
fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. The Company’s matching contributions were $0.9 million, $0.7 million and $0.6 million in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively.
10. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases
The Company leases boutique space and office space under operating leases expiring in various years through the fiscal year ending 2029. Certain of the
leases provide that the Company may cancel the lease, with penalties as defined in the lease, if the Company’s boutique sales at that location fall below an
established level. Certain leases provide for additional rent payments to be made when sales exceed a base amount. Certain operating leases provide for
renewal options for periods from three to five years at the market rate at the time of renewal.
Minimum future rental payments under non-cancellable operating leases as of February 2, 2019 are approximately as follows:
Fiscal Year

Amount
(in thousands)
$
48,644
43,356
36,785
30,983
26,084
59,039
$
244,891

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, rent expense totaled $45.4 million, $42.2 million and $38.7 million, respectively.
Legal Proceedings
On January 27, 2017, a purported collective action lawsuit entitled Meghan Magee, et al. v. Francesca’s Holdings Corp., et al. was filed in the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey, Camden Vicinage against the Company for alleged violations of federal and state wage and hour laws. After
substitution of a named plaintiff, the lawsuit is now captioned, Danielle Prulello, et al. v. Francesca’s Holding Corp., et al. On November 6, 2018, the court
conditionally certified the collective action. The case is now at the opt-in stage. The Company believes that the allegations contained in the lawsuit are
without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself against all claims asserted therein. A reasonable estimate of the amount of any possible loss or range of
loss cannot be made at this time and, as such, the Company has not recorded an accrual for any possible loss.
The Company, from time to time, is subject to various claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of any such
claim cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations or financial condition.
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11. Segment Reporting
The Company determined that it has one operating and reportable segment, which includes the operation of boutiques and its ecommerce website. The single
segment was identified based on how the Company’s chief operating decision maker, or its Chief Executive Officer, evaluates performance and allocates
resources. Additionally, the Company considered the similarity of merchandise offered, the customers served in boutiques and through the ecommerce
website and the operating characteristics of each channel. All of the Company’s identifiable assets are located in the United States.
12. Subsequent Events
In February 2019, the Company executed a workforce reduction at both corporate office and field management as part of its expense reduction initiative. The
Company’s Senior Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer (“CMO”) departed the Company during the same month. As a result of the workforce
reduction and the departure of the Company’s CMO, in February, 2019, the Company accrued a total of $1.0 million of severance benefits to be paid to these
employees.
In April 2019, the Company also awarded retention bonuses to certain employees totaling $2.0 million. This retention bonus will be paid on the first
anniversary of the award date subject to the continuous employment of the employee through the payment date.
13. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Fiscal Year 2018
Third
Second
Quarter
Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)
119,310
95,375
113,025
46,881
33,645
44,107
5,555
14,419
121
(6,755)
(23,060)
830
(21,287)
(16,223)
454
(0.61)
(0.47)
0.01
(0.61)
(0.47)
0.01

Fourth
Quarter
Net sales
Gross profit
Asset impairment charges
(Loss) income from operations
Net (loss) income
Basic (loss) earnings per common share
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share

$

Fiscal Year 2017
Third
Second
Quarter
Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)
138,491
105,791
119,707
60,825
41,860
55,395
158
100
10,362
455
11,839
3,726
239
7.263
0.10
0.01
0.20
0.10
0.01
0.20

Fourth
Quarter
Net sales
Gross profit
Asset impairment charges
Income from operations
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

$

60

First
Quarter
100,405
38,363
27
(4,520)
(3,885)
(0.11)
(0.11)

First
Quarter
107,689
48,683
7,306
4,333
0.12
0.12

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Interim Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of February 2, 2019, were effective to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and the information required to be disclosed by us is accumulated and communicated to our
management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended February 2, 2019 that have materially affected or are
reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our principal executive and
principal financial officers, and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our most recent fiscal year. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in the 2013
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (“2013 Framework”). Based on such assessment, management concluded that, as of February 2, 2019, our internal
control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.
The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2019, as stated in their report, which follows.
61

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited Francesca’s Holdings Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2019, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In
our opinion, Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
February 2, 2019, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2, 2019, and the related notes and our report dated May 3, 2019 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.
Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying “Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Houston, Texas
May 3, 2019
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATION GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting and which will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
We have adopted a written Code of Ethics and Conduct, which applies to all of our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive
officer and our principal financial and accounting officer. Our Code of Ethics and Conduct is available on our website, www.francescas.com under the
heading “Corporate Governance.” The information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
intend to disclose any amendment to, or waiver from, the Code of Ethics and Conduct for our directors, executive officers and employees of the Company,
including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or persons performing similar functions, to the extent
disclosure is required by applicable rules of the SEC and Nasdaq Stock Market LLC by posting such information on our website, at the address and location
specified above.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting and which will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting and which will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting and which will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting and which will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1.

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Part II, Item 8:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 2, 2019 and February 3, 2018
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended February 2, 2019, February 3, 2018 and January 28,
2017
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Fiscal years Ended February 2, 2019, February 3,
2018 and January 28, 2017
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended February 2, 2019, February 3, 2018 and January 28,
2017
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2.

Financial Statements Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is either not material or is included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
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3.

Exhibits
Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of
Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14,
2011)

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on September 20, 2016)

4.1

Form of Specimen Common Stock of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment No. 4 to
the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 13, 2011).

4.2

Description of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation’s Common Stock (filed herewith)

10.1

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 25, 2018, among Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, its Subsidiaries party thereto as loan parties, the
lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 30, 2018).

10.2

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form
S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14, 2011).

10.3 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Amendment No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May 24, 2011).

10.4 +

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Richard J. Emmett, dated as of March 31, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on May
24, 2011).

10.5 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of Amendment No. 5 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on July 14, 2011).

10.6 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.14 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on July 14, 2011).

10.7 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan - Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of Amendment No. 5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173581) filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on July 14, 2011).

10.8

10.9 +

10.10 +

Commercial Park Lease, dated as of December 27, 2011 between Francesca’s Collections, Inc. and Weingarten / Lufkin, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-179069) filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation
on January 18, 2012).
Form of Performance Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on June 11,
2014).
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on June 9, 2015).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.11 +

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 1, 2015 filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on September 9, 2015).

10.12 +

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 1, 2015 filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on September 9, 2015).

10.13 +

Employment Letter Agreement, dated March 23, 2016, between Francesca’s Collections, Inc., Francesca’s Services Corporation,
Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and Kelly M. Dilts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on March 25, 2016)

10.14 +

Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended April 30, 2016 filed by Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation on June 9, 2016)

10.15 +

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on March 22, 2017)

10.16 +

Francesca’s Holdings Corporation Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10Q
for the period ended August 4, 2018 file by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on September 12, 2018)

10.17 +

Retention Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2019, by and between Francesca’s Services Corporation and Kelly Dilts (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K filed by Francesca’s Holdings Corporation on April 3, 2019)

21.1

Subsidiaries of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (filed herewith)

23.1

Consent of Ernst & Young, independent registered public accountants (filed herewith)

31.1

Certification of the Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Interim Chief Executive Officer
(filed herewith)

31.2

Certification of the Annual Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officer (filed
herewith)

32.1

Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer (furnished herewith)

101

The following financial information from Francesca’s Holdings Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 2,
2019, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) and furnished electronically herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance
Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity; (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 3rd day of May, 2019.
FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION
By: /s/ Michael Prendergast
Name: Michael Prendergast
Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons in the capacities held on the dates
indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Michael Prendergast
Michael Prendergast

Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

May 3, 2019

/s/ Kelly Dilts
Kelly Dilts

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

May 3, 2019

/s/ Patricia A. Bender
Patricia A. Bender

Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Philip F. Bleser
Philip F. Bleser

Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Richard Emmett
Richard Emmett

Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Richard Kunes
Richard Kunes

Chairman, Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Joseph O’Leary
Joseph O’Leary

Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Martyn Redgrave
Martyn Redgrave

Director

May 3, 2019

/s/ Marie Toulantis
Marie Toulantis

Director

May 3, 2019
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Exhibit 4.2
DESCRIPTION OF FRANCESCA’S HOLDINGS CORPORATION’S CAPITAL STOCK
The following description of the capital stock of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and provisions of the Company’s certificate of
incorporation and bylaws, are summaries only. These summaries do not purport to be complete and are subject to and qualified by reference to the
Company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws and by the provisions of applicable law.
Authorized Capitalization
The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 80,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and 45,000 shares of preferred
stock, par value $0.01 per share.
Common Stock
Voting Rights
Each holder of the Company’s common stock is entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, including the
election or removal of directors. Generally, all matters to be voted on by stockholders must be approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the
holders of common stock present in person or represented by proxy, subject to any voting rights granted to holders of any preferred stock.
An election of directors by the Company’s stockholders shall be determined by a plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote on
the election; provided that pursuant to the Company’s voting policy approved by the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) on March 15, 2016, any
nominee for director who receives a greater number of “withhold” votes than “for” votes in an uncontested election is expected to tender to the Board his or
her resignation promptly following the certification of the election results. The nominating and corporate governance committee of the Board will consider
any resignation tendered under the voting policy and recommend to the Board whether to accept or reject such resignation. The Board will then act on such
resignation. There are no cumulative voting rights for the election of directors, which means that the holders of a majority of the shares of the Company’s
common stock voted will be entitled to elect all of the Board.
Dividends
Subject to the rights of holders of any then outstanding shares of the Company’s preferred stock, holders of the Company’s common stock are
entitled to receive ratably any dividends that may be declared by the Board out of funds legally available therefor.
Liquidation
In the event of the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of the Company’s common stock would be entitled to share ratably in
all assets available for distribution to stockholders after the payment of or provision for all of the Company’s debts and other liabilities and the satisfaction of
any liquidation preference granted to the holders of any then outstanding shares of preferred stock.
Other Rights
Holders of the Company’s common stock do not have preemptive rights to purchase shares of the Company’s stock. The shares of the Company’s
common stock are not subject to any redemption provisions and are not convertible into any other shares of the Company’s capital stock. The rights,
preferences and privileges of holders of the Company’s common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of the Company’s preferred stock
the Company may issue in the future.

Blank Check Preferred Stock
Under the terms of the Company’s certificate of incorporation, the Board will have the authority, without further action by the Company’s
stockholders, to issue up to 45,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof,
including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences. There are currently no shares of preferred stock
outstanding, and the Company has no present plans to issue any shares of preferred stock.
The purpose of authorizing the Board to issue preferred stock and determine its rights and preferences is to eliminate delays associated with a
stockholder vote on specific issuances. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions, future
financings and other corporate purposes, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of the Company, or could adversely affect the rights
of the Company’s common stockholders by restricting dividends on the common stock, diluting the voting power of the common stock, impairing the
liquidation rights of the common stock or delaying or preventing a change in control without further action by the stockholders. As a result of these or other
factors, the issuance of preferred stock could have an adverse impact on the market price of the Company’s common stock.
Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Delaware Law, the Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws
The Company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that are intended to enhance the likelihood of continuity and stability in
the composition of the Board and that could make it more difficult to acquire control of the Company by means of a tender offer, open market purchases, a
proxy contest or otherwise. The Company expects that these provisions, which are summarized below, will discourage coercive takeover practices or
inadequate takeover bids. These provisions are also designed to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with the
Board, which the Company believes may result in an improvement of the terms of any such acquisition in favor of the Company’s stockholders. However,
they also give the Board the power to discourage acquisitions that some stockholders may favor. A description of these provisions is set forth below.
Classified Board
The certificate of incorporation provides for the Board to be divided into three classes, with staggered three-year terms. Only one class of directors
will be elected at each annual meeting of stockholders, with the other classes continuing for the remainder of their respective three-year terms. Because the
Company’s stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights, stockholders holding a majority of the shares of common stock outstanding will be able to
elect all of the Company’s directors. A third party may be discouraged from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of the Company
as it is more difficult and time-consuming for stockholders to replace a majority of the directors on a classified board.
No Cumulative Voting
Under Delaware law, the right to vote cumulatively does not exist unless the certificate of incorporation specifically authorizes cumulative voting.
The Company’s certificate of incorporation does not grant stockholders the right to vote cumulatively; therefore stockholders holding a majority of the
shares of common stock outstanding will be able to elect all of the Company’s directors.
Stockholder Action by Written Consent and Special Meetings of Stockholders
Pursuant to Section 228 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the
stockholders may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is
signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting at which all shares of the Company’s stock entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, unless the Company’s certificate of incorporation
provides otherwise. However, the Company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws provides that all stockholder action must be effected at a duly called
meeting of stockholders and not by written consent, and that only the Board or chief executive officer may call a special meeting of stockholders.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Meetings, Nominations and Proposals
The Company’s bylaws include an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders,
including proposed nominations of candidates for election to the Board. Stockholders at an annual meeting will only be able to consider proposals or
nominations specified in the notice of meeting or brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board, or by a stockholder of record on the record
date for the meeting, who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has delivered timely written notice in proper form to the Company’s secretary of the
stockholder’s intention to bring such business before the meeting. These provisions could have the effect of delaying stockholder actions until the next
stockholder meeting that are favored by the holders of a majority of the Company’s outstanding voting securities or may discourage or deter a potential
acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect its own slate of directors or otherwise attempt to obtain control of the Company.
Stockholder Actions
The Company’s certificate of incorporation includes provisions requiring that all stockholder actions against the Company or any of its directors,
officers, or employees in their capacity as such be brought in the courts of the State of Delaware. The Company expects that these provisions will discourage
venue shopping that may unduly increase the costs and expenses to the Company in connection with stockholder actions; however, these provisions could
have the effect of discouraging the filing of certain stockholder actions against the Company.
Blank Check Preferred Stock
The Company believes that the availability of the preferred stock under the Company’s certificate of incorporation provides the Company with
flexibility in addressing corporate issues that may arise. Having these authorized shares available for issuance will allow the Company to issue shares of
preferred stock without the expense and delay of a special stockholders’ meeting. The authorized shares of preferred stock, as well as shares of common stock,
will be available for issuance without further action by the Company’s stockholders, unless action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock
exchange on which the Company’s securities may be listed. The Board has the power, subject to applicable law, to issue series of preferred stock that could,
depending on the terms of the series, impede the completion of a merger, tender offer or other takeover attempt. For instance, subject to applicable law, a
series of preferred stock might impede a business combination by including class voting rights which would enable the holder or holders of such series to
block a proposed transaction. The Board will make any determination to issue shares of preferred stock based on its judgment as to the Company’s and its
stockholders’ best interests. The Board, in so acting, could issue preferred stock having terms which could discourage an acquisition attempt or other
transaction that some, or a majority, of the stockholders might believe to be in their best interests or in which stockholders might receive a premium for their
stock over the then prevailing market price of the stock.
Super-Majority Voting
The certificate of incorporation requires a 66.7% stockholder vote for the amendment, repeal or modification of certain provisions of the Company’s
certificate of incorporation and bylaws relating to the classification of the Board, the requirement that stockholder actions be effected at a duly called
meeting and the designated parties entitled to call a special meeting of the stockholders. The combination of the classification of the Board, the lack of
cumulative voting and the 66.7% stockholder voting requirements will make it more difficult for the Company’s existing stockholders to replace the Board
as well as for another party to obtain control of the Company by replacing the Board. Because the Board has the power to retain and discharge the Company’s
officers, these provisions could also make it more difficult for existing stockholders or another party to effect a change in management. In addition, the
authorization of blank check preferred stock makes it possible for the Board to issue preferred stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could
impede the success of any attempt to change control of the Company.
These provisions may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers, delaying, or preventing changes in control of the Company’s management or the
Company, such as a merger, reorganization or tender offer. These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of continued stability in the composition
of the Board and its policies and to discourage certain types of transactions that may involve an actual or threatened acquisition of the Company. These
provisions are designed to reduce the Company’s vulnerability to an unsolicited acquisition proposal. The provisions also are intended to discourage certain
tactics that may be used in proxy fights. However, such provisions could have the effect of discouraging others from making tender offers for the Company’s
shares and, as a consequence, they also may inhibit fluctuations in the market price of the Company’s shares that could result from actual or rumored takeover
attempts. Such provisions may also have the effect of preventing changes in the Company’s management.

Delaware Takeover Statute
The Company’s certificate of incorporation provides that the Company is not governed by Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.
Accordingly, the Company is not subject to the anti-takeover effects of Section 203 which would have imposed additional requirements regarding mergers
and other business combinations.
Limitation on Liability of Directors and Officers
The Company’s certificate of incorporation limits the liability of directors to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. The effect of these
provisions is to eliminate the rights of the Company and its stockholders, through stockholders’ derivative suits on behalf of the Company, to recover
monetary damages from a director for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, including breaches resulting from grossly negligent behavior. However,
exculpation does not apply to any director if the director has acted in bad faith, knowingly or intentionally violated the law, authorized illegal dividends or
redemptions or derived an improper benefit from his or her actions as a director.
In addition, the certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that the Company will indemnify the Company’s directors and officers to the fullest
extent permitted by Delaware law. The Company also expects to continue to maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance. The Company believes that
these indemnification provisions and insurance are useful to attract and retain qualified directors and executive officers.
The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions in the certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing
a lawsuit against directors for breach of their fiduciary duty. These provisions may also have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation
against directors and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit the Company and its stockholders.
In addition to the indemnification required in the certificate of incorporation and bylaws, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements
with each of its current directors and executive officers. These agreements provide for the indemnification of the Company’s directors and executive officers
for all reasonable expenses and liabilities incurred in connection with any action or proceeding brought against them by reason of the fact that they are or
were the Company’s agents. The Company believes that these bylaw provisions and indemnification agreements, as well as its maintaining directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, help to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and officers.
Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for the Company’s common stock is Computershare, Inc.

Exhibit 21.1
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following are subsidiaries of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and the jurisdictions in which they are organized.
Entity Name
Francesca’s LLC
Francesca’s Collections, Inc.
Francesca’s Services Corporation
francescas.com, Inc.

Jurisdiction of Organization
Delaware
Texas
Texas
Texas

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-175814 and 333-204856) pertaining to the Francesca’s
Holdings Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation Stock Incentive Plan, the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2011
Equity Incentive Plan, and the Francesca’s Holdings Corporation 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, of our reports dated May 3, 2019, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Francesca’s
Holdings Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2019.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Houston, Texas
May 3, 2019

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Michael Prendergast, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financing reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Dated: May 3, 2019

By

/s/ Michael Prendergast
Michael Prendergast
Interim Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Kelly Dilts, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financing reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Dated: May 3, 2019

By

/s/ Kelly Dilts
Kelly Dilts
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Michael Prendergast, the Interim Chief Executive Officer of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, certify that (i) the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended February 2, 2019 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation as of the dates and for the periods set forth therein.
/s/ Michael Prendergast
Michael Prendergast
Interim Chief Executive Officer
May 3, 2019
Date
I, Kelly Dilts, the Chief Financial Officer of Francesca’s Holdings Corporation, certify that (i) the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 2, 2019 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Francesca’s Holdings
Corporation as of the dates and for the periods set forth therein.
/s/ Kelly Dilts
Kelly Dilts
Chief Financial Officer
May 3, 2019
Date
The foregoing certifications are being furnished solely to accompany the Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and Rule 13a-14(b) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These certifications shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it
by reference.

